Town of Thompson's Station
Board of Mayor and Aldermen
New Board/New Year/Structural Work Session 6:00 p.m.
Remote Regular Meeting Agenda 7:00 p.m.
January 12, 2021
Meeting Called To Order
Oath Of Office:

Organizational Items:
1. Appointment Of Vice Mayor:
a. Open Nominations
b. Close Nominations
c. Select Vice Mayor

2. Appointment Of Board Of Zoning Appeals Member:

a. Open Nominations
b. Close Nominations
c. Select BZA Member

Documents:
ITEM 2 - BZA APPLICANTS.PDF

Consent Agenda:

A. Approval To Conduct This Meeting By Electronic Means Which Is Necessary
To Protect The Public Health, Safety, And Welfare Of Tennesseans In Light Of
The COVID-19 Outbreak (Pursuant To Executive Order No. 71).

B. Consideration Of The Minutes Of The November 18, 2020 Regular Meeting.

Documents:
ITEM 3 B - BOMA MINUTES 11 10 2020.PDF
Presentations/Announcements/Agenda Request:

a. Presentation of 2019-2020 Audit — Culver, PLLC
b. Congenital Heart Defect Awareness Week - Feb. 7th-14th, 2021

Documents:

PRESENTATION AUDITED FINANCIALS FOR JUNE 30, 2020.PDF
CHD-PROCLAMATION-LETTER 2021.PDF

Public Comments:



Any citizen desiring to make a comment can submit their written comments to
the Town Clerk which will be included in the meeting minutes for public
perusal. Email your comments to Town Hall at INFO@THOMPSONS-
STATION.COM with January BOMA Public Comments as the Subject Line.
Contact the Town Clerk with any questions at (615) 794-4333 ext. 1.

Unfinished Business:

4. Approval Of Second Reading Of Ordinance 2020-011 To Amend Title 18 To
Adopt A Policy For Waste Water Tap Reversion And Assignment:

Documents:

ITEM 4 - ORDINANCE 2020-011 TO ADOPT A POLICY FOR
WASTEWATER TAP REVERSION AND ASSIGNMENT.PDF
ITEM 4 - PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2020-011 TO ADOPT A POLICY FOR
WASTEWATER TAP REVERSION AND ASSIGNMENT (RED-LINED).PDF

5. Approval Of Resolution 2021-001 For Acknowledgement Of Transfer,
Assignment And Assumption Of Phase 16 (B) Of The Tollgate Village
Development From MSBC TN Homebuilders, LLC To Phillips Builders, LLC
And Confirmation Of Entity Ownership And Responsibility For Phase 16 (B):

Documents:
ITEM 5 - RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF

THE TRANSFER ASSIGNMENT ASSUMPTION OF PHASE 16 (B) OF

TOLLGATE.PDF
ITEM 5 - ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF TRANSFER ASSIGNMENT AND
ASSUMPTION - MBSC - PHILLIPS WITH EXHIBIT 1.4.21.PDF

New Business:

6. Approval Of First Reading Of Ordinance 2021-001 To Amend The Town'’s
Municipal Code By Amending And Adding Chapters 4 & 5 Of Title 15 To Add
Parking And Parking Enforcement Rules:

Documents:

ITEM 6 - ORDINANCE NO. 2021-001 AMENDING TITLE 15 TO ADOPT A
PARKING ORDINANCE.PDF

Adjourn

This meeting will be held remotely due to the Public Health Emergency related to COVID-
19 & will be live-streamed via our website www.thompsons-station.com


mailto:info@thompsons-station.com
https://www.thompsons-station.com/7a5b893c-6f25-417a-9ed1-cd10e4e7d0ef
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Regina Fowler <rfowler@thompsons-station.com>

Online Form Submittal: BZA Interest Form
2 messages

noreply@civicplus.com <noreply@civicplus.com> Tue, Nov 3, 2020 at 9:35 AM

To: info@thompsons-station.com, trainey@thompsons-station.com

BZA Interest Form

First Name Joshua

Last Name Mayo

Addréss1 “ | | 2>706 Paddock P-éfk bﬁve
éity - | Thompsons Station | |
State o . TN o

Zip | | | | '37179‘

E-mail Address jsmayo11@yahoo.com

Phone Number 6155334174

Introduce yourself and
explain your interest in
participating in the BZA

Hello, my name is Joshua Mayo and | am a life long Tennessee
resident and have lived in Thompsons Station since 2008. |
have had the opportunity to watch Thompsons Station grow

and continue to be impressed with the forethought and
intentionality with which our elected officials and board
members have managed our towns growth. For some time |
have wanted to engage / volunteer with our community to
support our town and responsible growth. The Board of Zoning
appeals to my skills as an attorney and roles | have held at
various stages of my career. As the current Director of
Compliance for my company of am cognizant of the varying
rules and regulations / oversight that are necessary to operate
efficiently, while understanding that these rules are solid
guidelines and not driven by opinions or emotions. | would love
the opportunity to volunteer withy our town and assist in the
research, review and arbitration of issues involving
implementation of the Town’s zoning codes.

File Upload - Cover Letter, Resume - Joshua S. Mayo - Board of Zoning Appeals.pdf

Resume, etc.

Email not displaying correctly? View it in your browser.
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Joshua S. Mayo

Thomson’s Station, Tennessee 37179
Direct: (615) 533-4174 / E-mail: jsmayoll@yahoo.com

CORPORATE & REGULATORY COUNSEL

Accomplished and results oriented Corporate and Regulatory Counsel with unique expertise in advising executive
officers and teams on an array of complex regulatory and business matters. Skilled in collaborating with corporate sales
and business operations teams. Effective communicator, known for building strategic business partnerships with
attorneys, directors, staff, and clients.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Alto Solutions, Inc. - Vice President and Director of Compliance July 2019 — Present

Alto Solutions, Inc. d/b/a/ AltoIRA (Alto) is a financial technology firm established in 2018 which provides a SaaS
solution to allow investors of any size and level of sophistication to invest in alternative assets, such as private companies,
real estate, unregistered funds, equity crowdfunding, cryptocurrency and marketplace loans through self-directed
Individual Retirement Accounts (IRAs) and qualified retirement plans. Alto’s platform provides administrative and non-
fiduciary custodial services, tax reporting and recordkeeping, all through the Company's online portal.

Role and Responsibilities:

As the Vice President and Director of Compliance, I am responsible for ensuring all company operations and
product/service offerings comply with applicable state and federal laws, privacy standards, Department of Labor (DOL)
regulations, as well as material contracts and internal policies and standards. Specific duties include:

e Formulating company policies and procedures relating to custodial services and ensuring compliance with
regulations set forth by State Financial Institutions Division and Internal Revenue Service (IRS);

e Implementing company procedures and continuing education courses to ensure all employees are provided with
training appropriate for their position (frequency and content) including Workplace Harassment, Ethics and
Conflicts of Interest and Cybersecurity protocols to prevent illegal, unethical, or improper conduct;

e Researching, maintaining and advising executive management of compliance requirements; particularity those
relating to the Internal Revenue Code (IRC), the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act (GLBA), and applicable marketing
laws (CAN-SPAM) and state privacy laws which trend towards best practices and industry standards;

¢ Managing compliance policies and procedures, including policies for administrative services and online platform
operations; including Alto’s integration with Coinbase, a digital currency exchange;

e Reviewing company forms, product offerings and operations; including updates to the Alto’s Terms of Service,
Privacy Policy, Custodial and Disclosure Agreements, marketing materials and partnership agreements;

e Maintaining company corporate and compliance records; including corporate insurance policies, custodial
agreements and third-party vendor agreements;

e Carrying out regular assessments of the adequacy of Alto’s internal systems and controls to ensure that risks are
managed effectively, and vulnerabilities are addressed timely and efficiently;

e Developing scaled strategies for addressing risk; including standardizing client onboarding process through
enhancing the UX / UI experience to ensure company disclosures are properly acknowledged and agreed upon;

e Drafted and instituted Alto’s Comprehensive Information Security Plan (CISP) and Incident Response Policy;

e Developed and instituted a Pandemic Response Policy as a part of the overall Busines Continuity Plan, which
includes return to work and office use policies;

e  Performing such related duties as the CEO, COO, General Counsel or Board may request.

Cumberland Trust and Investment Company 2013 — July 2019

Cumberland Trust is an independent non-depository trust company which partners with financial advisors and attorneys,
providing comprehensive trust services to families and private wealth offices.

Vice President & Senior Counsel 2018 - July 2019

Supervised the in-house legal operations team, business compliance team and support staff regarding new business
relationships and all fiduciary matters. Supported additional responsibilities of the legal department including risk
management, regulatory compliance, human resources, and management of outside counsel in assigned matters.




Principal responsibilities included:

e Monitored and analyzed the impact of proposed legislation to proactively identify and resolve regulatory and legal
matters related to fiduciary, tax, estate and trust law;

e Drafted policies, procedures, and guidelines governing Cumberland’s Business Continuity, Disaster Recovery, and
Safety and Security Programs. Assisted in creation and implementation of Cumberland’s IT Steering committee;

e Supervised outside counsel in ongoing litigation matters as assigned by the Special Counsel and CEO,;

e Established and delivered monthly legal and compliance training to Cumberland’s client administration and business
development teams;

e Reviewed all company marketing materials and provided training to the corporate sales and marketing teams;

e Managed and coordinated contract review, document preparation, and internal requests for legal counsel via
Cumberland’s Salesforce Management System;

Vice President & Fiduciary Counsel June 2016 - 2018

Supervised a staff of three attorneys and support personnel in the review of all proposed new business and trust transfers,
totaling approximately $875,000,000.00. Revised and negotiated various contracts and amendments, including vendor
contracts and non-disclosure / confidentiality agreements. Spearheaded the company’s footprint expansion in
Pennsylvania, Kentucky, and Illinois by coordinating with out of state banking and regulatory authorities as to the
applicable filings and regulations. Engaged outside counsel and lobbyist to meet and communicate with policymakers to
further Cumberland’s expansion.

Asst. Vice President & Fiduciary Counsel 2015 — June 2016

Coordinated the review of approximately $325,000,000.00 in proposed new business and trust transfers. Recommended
and implemented enhancements to the company's compliance review procedures to increase efficiency while minimizing
Cumberland's risk exposure. Prepared, reviewed and negotiated agreements and memoranda with outside counsel.
Closely monitored changes in relevant regulatory areas and provided education on those changes to the trust operations,
administration and business development teams.

Asst. Vice President & Trust Officer December 2013 — 2015

Provided account administration and relationship management for Special Needs Trusts, Charitable and Insurance Trusts,
and Tennessee Investment Services Trusts, with assets totaling approximately $85,000,000.00. Reviewed fiduciary
matters associated with Special Needs Trusts (SNT), Guardianships, and Conservatorships under the management of
Cumberland. Assisted in the training and development of new staff members as to SNT and the applicable Medicaid
rules. Established a thorough understanding of, and familiarity with the company's business, markets, facilities, clients
and competitors in order to identify trends and formulate appropriate legal advice, structures and strategies.

Law Office of Joshua S. Mayo Nov. 2012 - Dec. 2013

Attorney and Counselor at Law

Established and maintained a successful general law practice based in Franklin, Tennessee. Represented clients in an
assortment of matters that included estate preparation, family law, criminal defense, and employment law issues. Served
as Legal Defense Counsel for the Fraternal Order of Police (FOP), mediating and adjudicating alleged workplace
violations with Metropolitan Department of Law and Executive Officers of the Metropolitan Police Department.
Consulted with FOP leadership concerning proposed legislation, internal policy revisions and proposals.

Metropolitan Nashville Police Department 2003 - 2013

The Metropolitan Nashville Police Department (MNPD) is the primary provider of law enforcement services for
Metropolitan Nashville and Davidson County, Tennessee. The department includes over 1450 full-time sworn members.
The Department of Justice ranked the MNPD as the 36th largest U.S. police department.

Legal Resources Division: Officer / Attorney March. 2009 — April 2013

Developed, coordinated and presented the annual MNPD In-Service Legal Training for approximately 1450 sworn
officers each year. Coordinated instruction of new Police Recruits on the fundamentals of criminal law, constitutional
law and legal procedure. Tracked proposed legislation in order to update Command Staff and the department as to
statutory changes and analyze the potential effects to the MNPD. Evaluated employee disciplinary files for compliance
with departmental and regulatory guidelines. Acted in conjunction with Human Resources as the MNPD representative
for disciplinary and administrative hearings. Interpreted policies and regulations as requested by MNPD Command staff.




Criminal Investigations Division: Detective Jan. 2007 — March. 2009

Investigated sexual related offenses against children and adults, including allegations of employee misconduct within the
Metropolitan Nashville Government. Presented findings to the District Attorney’s office and Grand Jury; subsequently
participating in the prosecution of said offenses. Reviewed division subpoenas, search warrants, court orders, and
affidavits for legal sufficiency. Performed public speaking engagements on sexual abuse detection and prevention.
Detective of record in the Tennessee Supreme Court case of State v. Sanders, 452 S.W.3d 300, solidifying the "legitimate
independent motivation" test.

Patrol Division: Police Officer March 2003 — Jan. 2007

Performed law enforcement duties, patrolled assigned areas and engaged local community members in proactive problem
solving. Investigated and prepared reports related to accidents, fraud, criminal offenses, and damage to property.
Received certification and training on Crisis Negotiation from the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI). Designed legal
and mental health training for the Crisis Negotiator Team. Developed and implemented training scenarios involving the
MNPD SWAT Team, Bomb Squad, and Emergency Communications relating to Crisis Negotiations.

EDUCATION

Nashville School of Law Nashville, Tennessee
Juris Doctorate May 2012
Member of Honorable Cooper's Inn Society
Trevecca Nazarene University Nashville, Tennessee
Masters of the Arts / Psychology & Counseling December 2006
Middle Tennessee State University Murfreesboro, Tennessee
Bachelor of Science / Psychology & Criminal Justice December 2002
Graduated Cum Laude

LICENSES & CERTIFICATIONS
Licensed Attorney Certified Information Privacy Professional (CIPP / US)
Board of Professional Responsibility of the International Association of Privacy Professionals

Supreme Court of TN — BPR # 031223

PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS & COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

e Tennessee Bar Association e National Eagle Scout Association (NESA)
e Association of Corporate Counsel e  Williamson County Soccer Association
e  Wills for Heroes Foundation e Tennessee Immigrant & Refugee Rights Coalition

e  Williamson County Bar Association Pro-Bono Legal Assistance
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Subject: Fwd: Online Form Submittal: BZA Interest Form

Tyler Rainey <trainey@thompsons-station.com> Fri, Oct 30, 2020, 8:2-
2 to Micah Wood, Jennifer Jones, Ken Mclawhon

You are viewing an attached message. Town of Thompson's Station Mail
can't verify the authenticity of attached messages.

---------- Forwarded message ---------

From: <noreply@civicplus.com>

Date: Thu, Oct 29, 2020 at 5:18 PM

Subject: Online Form Submittal: BZA Interest Form

To: <info@thompsons-station.com>, <trainey@thompsons-station.com>

BZA Interest Form

First Name Kaitlin

Last Name Riddle

Address1 2553 Westerham Way

City Thompsons Station

State ' TN

Zip 37179 B
E—?n—a_ir;blddress : Kaitlin.winham@gmail.com

Phone Number 6155840147

Introduce yourself and Hello! My name is Kaitlin Riddle. My husband and | have
explain your interest in belonged to the Thompsons Station community for 3 years and
participating in the BZA we are absolutely in love with this town, it's people and it's

potential. | have a background in sales and marketing and
enjoy doing anything creative. I've been super blessed to work
as a stay at home mom for the past six years for my two boys,
Gabiriel and Finley. My husband Brian is an attorney / financial
advisor in Cool Springs and we see ourselves in this town for a
long time. My interest in participating in the BZA is solely to
serve and volunteer for the community that | love in anyway |
can.

File Upload - Cover Letter, Field not completed.
Resume, etc.

Email not displaying correctly? View it in your browser.
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Town of Thompson’s Station
Board of Mayor and Aldermen
Remote Meeting Minutes
November 10, 2020 7:00 p.m.

Call to Order

The virtual meeting of the Board of Mayor and Alderman of the Town of Thompson's
Station was called to order at 7:00 p.m. on November 10, 2020 with the required quorum. The
following statement was read by Mayor Napier:

Pursuant to the Guidance from the Office of the Comptroller for the State of Tennessee
and in accordance with Governor Lee’s Executive Order No. 65 (which was previously extended
by Executive Orders Nos. 16, 34, 51 and 60):

This Town of Thompson’s Station Board of Mayor and Alderman meeting, with notice, is
being held virtually and being recorded to protect the public health, safety, and welfare of the
Citizens of Thompson’s Station in light of the coronavirus and to continue to allow the Town to
function and operate.

Further, it is the desire of the Board of Mayor and Alderman to include this
determination in the minutes for this meeting.

We understand that we, the Thompson’s Station Board of Mayor and Alderman, serves
the Town of Thompson’s Station, which is why we are currently recording this virtual meeting,
broadcasting it live for public viewing and uploading and preserving it for future viewing.

A recording of this meeting will be available on the Town of Thompson’s Station’s web
site at thompsons-station.com within 24 hours of this meeting. Members and staff participating
remotely were: Mayor Corey Napier, Alderman Shaun Alexander; Alderman Brandon Bell;
Alderman Ben Dilks; Alderman Brian Stover; Town Administrator Ken McLawhon; Finance
Director Steve Banks; IT Coordinator Tyler Rainey, Town Recorder/Clerk Regina Fowler,
Maintenance Supervisor, Bryan King and Town Attorneys Andrew Mills and Kirk Vandivort.

Consent Agenda:

a. Approval to conduct this meeting by electronic means which is necessary to
protect the public health, safety, and welfare of Tennesseans in light of the COVID-
19 outbreak (pursuant to Executive Order No. 65).

b. Consideration of the Minutes of the October 13, 2020 regular meeting.

c. Appointments/Reappointments: Parks & Recreation Advisory Board-Millie
Halvorson & Clayton Blunt - DRC-Reappointment of Steve Bennett.

d. 2021 - Meeting Dates for BOMA, Utility Board, Planning Commission & Parks and
Recreation Advisory Board.

1. Approve Consent Agenda: Alderman Bell made a motion to approve the Consent
Agenda a) approval to conduct this meeting by electronic means which is necessary to protect
the public health, safety and welfare of Tennesseans in light of the COVID-19 outbreak



Board of Mayor and Aldermen — Minutes of the Meeting
November 10, 2020

Page 2

(pursuant to Executive Order No. 65, b) Consideration of the Minutes of the October 13, 2020
regular meeting c) Appointments/Reappointments for: Parks & Recreation Advisory Board —
Millie Halvorson & Clayton Blunt, DRC Reappointment of Steve Bennett d) 2021 Meeting Dates
for BOMA, Utility Board, Planning Commission and Parks and Recreation Advisory Board. The
motion was seconded by Alderman Alexander and carried unanimously.

Roll Call Vote:
VOTE VOTE VOTE
Alderman Alexander Yea Alderman Bell Yea Alderman Dilks  Yea
Alderman Stover Yea Mayor Napier Yea
Yea 5 Nay O Abstain 0 Absent 0

Motion carried.

Announcements:

It is the practice of our town to recognize those that have served the community with a
mounted railroad spike in appreciation for their years of service. Tonight’s presentation, as
shown in the picture is for Alderman Dilks in acknowledgement of his service of four years
starting in 2016 and ending this year. The staff will deliver this memento.

Public Comments:

Any citizen desiring to make a comment can submit their written comments to the Town
Clerk which will be included in the meeting minutes for public perusal. Email your comments
to Town Hall at info@thompsons-station.com with May BOMA Public Comments as the Subject
Line. Contact the Town Clerk with any questions at (615) 794-4333 ext. 1.

Board of Mayor And Alderman:

| am writing in regards to a matter that appears to becoming a greater safety concern with each passing school year. | am
writing to you to request assistance in working with residents of Towne Village to establish traffic control solutions on
Bungalow Drive where it dead ends at Board of Education Property.

| believe there is a valid concern among residents of Towne Village of Tollgate when Parents elect to use this location as a
means to drop off students in the morning and pick them up in the afternoon. While Bungalow Drive is a Public Road, | am not
sure | believe that anyone has the legal right to obstruct traffic in a residential location to deliver and pick up students. This sort
of thing is to be expected on school Property but not within a neighborhood.

First of all there is no legal sanctioned crossing for students at this location. Second, Parents pull in, stop their automobiles in
both directions and prevent residents from being able to access their own driveways. Third, the street at this location comes to
a sharp curve in the road as it becomes Newark Lane. Because of that sharp curve in the road there is very limited sight distance
increasing the risk for an accident. When parents park on both sides of the street to pick up students in the afternoon,
Emergency vehicles cannot pass freely. Our Landscapers are prevented from moving their vehicles freely though this area.

To me this constitutes obstructing Traffic and it is unlawful.

Our HOA has tried several things to reduce traffic and access to the school at this location, including repairing the existing farm
fence, Erecting signage to prevent Parking, School Drop off, and School Pick up, and contacting the police for assistance at peak
school hours. The fence was destroyed and the signage goes ignored. The police have indicated the streets are not dedicated,
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which is false. They also tell us the signage was not erected by city ordinance and thus cannot be enforced. Any approach to
violators by residents is met with anger and profanity and enraged drivers leaving the premises . IS this the kind of
neighborhood you want for Thompsons Station?

Respectfully | ask do we as homeowners have no Rights? Mind you, all of these students being dropped off will be drivers
themselves in a matter of months. Is this really how we chose to educate them on the Rules of the Road and respect to others?

Please | ask that you work with our HOA and city Planners to develop a solution that fosters respect and safety to all that have
chosen to live in this great town.

Sincerely,
Amy Robertson

Unfinished Business:

2. Approve first Reading of Ordinance 2020-011 to Amend Title 18 to Adopt a Policy for
Waste Water Tap Reversion and Assignment: Alderman Bell made a motion to Approve on
first Reading of Ordinance 2020-011 to Amend Title 18 to Adopt a Policy for Waste Water Tap
Reversion and Assignment with a contingency as discussed to modify language to put a floor
clause for costs. The motion was seconded by Alderman Alexander and passed unanimously.
Roll Call Vote:

VOTE VOTE VOTE
Alderman Alexander Yea Alderman Bell Yea Alderman Dilks  Yea
Alderman Stover Yea Mayor Napier Yea
Yea 5 Nay O Abstain 0 Absent 0

Motion carried.

3. Approve second Reading of Ordinance 2020-012 to Amend Ordinance 99-002, Title 15,

Chapter 2 of the Thompson’s Station Municipal Code regarding Speed Limits. Alderman
Stover made a motion to approve on second Reading of Ordinance 2020-012 to Amend

Ordinance 99-002, Title 15, Chapter 2 of the Thompson’s Station Municipal Code regarding
Speed Limits. The motion was seconded by Alderman Alexander and passed unanimously.
Roll Call Vote:

VOTE VOTE VOTE
Alderman Alexander Yea Alderman Bell Yea Alderman Dilks  Yea
Alderman Stover Yea Mayor Napier Yea
Yea 5 Nay O Abstain 0 Absent 0

Motion carried.

New Business:

4. Approval of Zoning associated with Annexation of Property at 4440 Les Watkins Road:
Alderman Bell made a motion to approve Zoning associated with Annexation of Property at
4440 Les Watkins Road. The motion was seconded by Alderman Alexander and passed
unanimously.
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Roll Call Vote:
VOTE VOTE VOTE
Alderman Alexander Yea Alderman Bell Yea Alderman Dilks  Yea
Alderman Stover Yea Mayor Napier Yea
Yea 5 Nay O Abstain 0 Absent 0

Motion carried.

Adjourn

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:45 p.m.

Corey Napier, Mayor Regina Fowler, Town Recorder/Clerk

Reappointment of Trent Harris by Mayoral Appointment to Planning Commission
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certified public accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Mayor and Aldermen
Town of Thompson'’s Station, Tennessee
Thompson’s Station, Tennessee

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and
each major fund of the Town of Thompson’s Station, Tennessee (the “Town”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due from error or fraud.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of the Town of Thompson’s
Station, Tennessee as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows
thereof and the statements of budgetary comparison for the general fund and state street aid fund for the year ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.



Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management’s discussion and
analysis (pages 4-9) be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
Town of Thompson’s Station, Tennessee’s basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of
federal awards on page 36, the schedule of changes in long-term debt by individual issue on page 37, and the directory of
officials on page 1, as required by the State of Tennessee are, presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements.

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards and the schedule of changes in long-term debt by issue are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to
the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and
the schedule of changes in long-term debt by issue are fairly stated, in all material aspects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

The directory of officials information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Governmental Auditing Standards

In accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 22, 2020 on our
consideration of the Town of Thompson’s Station, Tennessee’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Town's internal control over financial reporting and on compliance.

Culver, PLLC

Oakland, Tennessee
December 22, 2020



TOWN OF THOMPSON'S STATION, TENNESSEE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

As management of the Town of Thompson’s Station (the “Town”), we offer readers of the Town’s financial statements
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. Readers
are encouraged to consider information presented here in conjunction with the Town’s financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

1). The assets of the Town exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at the close of the most recent
fiscal year by $46,293,871 (net position). Of this amount, $9,905,268 is considered unrestricted funds and may be
used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

2). The government’s total net position increased by $2,858,208 during fiscal year 2020.

3). As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Town’s governmental funds reported an ending fund balance of
$7,533,250, an increase of $1,228,208 for the year. Over 94% of this total amount, or $7,104,995 is available for
spending at the government’s discretion (unassigned fund balance).

4). On June 30, 2020, the unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was 263% of total general fund
expenditures.

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town’s basic financial statements. The Town’s
basic financial statements comprise three components: (1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial
statements, and (3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in
addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-Wide Financial Statements — These financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of the Town’s finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the Town’s assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows of
resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreased in net position may serve as a
useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Town is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the Town’s net position changed during the most recent
fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this financial statement for
some items that will only results in cash flows in future fiscal periods.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town that are principally supported by
taxes, licenses, and permits, and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The
governmental activities of the Town include general government, parks, and highways and streets. The business-type
activity of the Town includes wastewater services.



TOWN OF THOMPSON'S STATION, TENNESSEE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED (UNAUDITED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Fund Financial Statements — A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town of Thompson’s Station, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All
of the funds of the Town can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and a proprietary fund.

Governmental Funds — Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements; however, unlike the government-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as
well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in
evaluating a Town’s near-term financing requirements. Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of
the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with
similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so,
readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the
governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Town adopts an annual operating budget and capital improvements budget for its General Fund and the State Street
Aid Special Revenue Fund.

Proprietary Fund — The Town maintains a wastewater fund as an enterprise fund. Enterprise funds are used to report the
same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail.
The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information of the wastewater activity, which is also
considered a major fund of the Town.

The Town adopts an annual operating budget and capital improvement budget for its Proprietary Fund.

Notes to the Financial Statements - The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of
the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other Information — In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain
other required information. The original budgets and final budgets as well as comparisons of final budgets to actual appear
on pages 16 through 19.




TOWN OF THOMPSON'S STATION, TENNESSEE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED (UNAUDITED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the Town’s financial position. In the case of the Town, assets
exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $46,293,871 at the end of the most recent fiscal year.

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Current and other assets S 8,381,100 S 7,022,272 $ 3,959,338 § 4,753,621 S 12,340,438 $ 11,775,893
Capital assets 19,593,275 19,343,268 18,442,347 16,646,742 38,035,622 35,990,010
Total assets $ 27,974,375 $ 26,365,540 $ 22,401,685 $ 21,400,363 $ 50,376,060 $ 47,765,903
Long-term liabilities outstanding 1,751,200 1,996,500 324,074 435,185 2,075,274 2,431,685
Other liabilities 377,272 426,939 208,692 68,360 585,964 495,299
Total liabilities 2,128,472 2,423,439 532,766 503,545 2,661,238 2,926,984
Deferred inflows of resources 304,951 287,256 1,116,000 1,116,000 1,420,951 1,403,256
Net position:
Netinvestment in capital assets 17,842,075 17,346,768 18,118,273 16,211,557 35,960,348 33,558,325
Restricted for roads and streets 428,255 283,108 - 428,255 283,108
Unrestricted 7,270,622 6,024,969 2,634,646 3,569,261 9,905,268 9,594,230
Total net position 25,540,952 23,654,845 20,752,919 19,780,818 46,293,871 43,435,663

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position $ 27,974,375 $ 26,365,540 $ 22,401,685 $ 21,400,363 $ 50,376,060 S 47,765,903

A significant portion of the Town’s net position, $35,960,348 or 78% reflects its investment in capital assets (for example
— land, buildings, vehicles, equipment, and infrastructure), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still
outstanding. The Town uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; therefore, these assets are not available
for future spending. The Town’s investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt. It should be noted that the
resources needed to repay any future debt issues must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

At year end, $428,255 of the Town’s net position represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how
they may be used. For the Town, the restricted resources must be used for State Street Aid expenses. The remaining
balance of unrestricted net position, $9,905,268 (21%), may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to
citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town reports positive balances in both categories of net position, both for the
government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities.



TOWN OF THOMPSON'S STATION, TENNESSEE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED (UNAUDITED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

The following is a summary of financial activities for the Town during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Program revenues:
Charges for services S 47,230 S 39,131 S 1,271,652 S 1,140,000 $ 1,318,882 S 1,179,131
Operatinggrants and contributions 343,096 175,356 - - 343,096 175,356
Capital grants and contributions - - 743,400 502,500 743,400 502,500
General revenues: - -
Property taxes 317,333 288,090 - - 317,333 288,090
Local option sales taxes 1,165,962 994,173 - - 1,165,962 994,173
Intergovernmental revenues 609,853 657,413 - - 609,853 657,413
Building permits/impact fees 1,390,057 1,130,012 - - 1,390,057 1,130,012
Other 220,725 202,784 - - 220,725 202,784
Unrestricted investment earnings 29,823 36,311 19,807 18,420 49,630 54,731
Total revenues 4,124,079 3,523,270 2,034,859 1,660,920 6,158,938 5,184,190
Expenses:
General government 1,776,032 1,462,296 - - 1,776,032 1,462,296
State Street Aid 33,023 80,499 - - 33,023 80,499
Streets and roads 357,129 352,794 - - 357,129 352,794
Parks 15,876 58,021 - - 15,876 58,021
Debt service 55,912 66,644 - - 55,912 66,644
Wastewater - - 1,062,758 910,584 1,062,758 910,584
Total expenses 2,237,972 2,020,254 1,062,758 910,584 3,300,730 2,930,838
Change in net position 1,886,107 1,503,016 972,101 750,336 2,858,208 2,253,352
Net position -beginning of year 23,654,845 22,151,829 19,780,818 19,030,482 43,435,663 41,182,311
Net position -end of year $ 25,540,952 S 23,654,845 $ 20,752,919 $19,780,818 S 46,293,871 S 43,435,663

Governmental Activities — Governmental activities increased the Town’s net position by $1,886,107, which compares with
an increase in net position of $1,503,016 for fiscal year 2019. During the fiscal year 2020, no infrastructure assets were
contributed or accepted.

Business-Type Activities — Business-type activities increased the Town’s net position by $972,101 compared with $750,336
for 2019. Revenues from charges to customers for wastewater treatment increased by $131,652 and capital grants and
contributions increased by $240,900. Wastewater expenses increased by $152,174 compared to prior year primarily due
from new allocations for wastewater payroll and insurance. The business-type activities spent $2,229,239 on construction
in progress projects and such expenditures were appropriately capitalized on the balance sheet; this resulted in a
significant increase in capital assets and net investment in capital assets.




TOWN OF THOMPSON'S STATION, TENNESSEE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED (UNAUDITED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TOWN’S FUNDS
As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governments Funds — The focus of the Town’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Town’s financing requirements.
In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the Town’s net resources available for spending
at the end of the fiscal year. As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Town’s governmental funds reported an ending
fund balance of $7,533,250. Fund balances of the governmental funds increased $1,228,208 during fiscal year 2020
primarily due to increases in building permit revenue and local sales taxes.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the Town. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance
for the general fund was $7,104,995. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare unassigned
fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 263% of total general fund expenditures for
this fiscal year.

Proprietary fund — The Town’s proprietary fund provides the same type of information found in the government-wide
financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net position of the Wastewater Fund at the end of the year amounted to $2,634,646. The Wastewater Fund
has an increase in net position for the year of $972,101. Factors concerning the financial position of this fund have been
addressed in the discussion of the Town’s business-type activity above.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS
Highlights of the differences between the budget and actual are listed below:
Actual over budgeted total taxes by $316,377.
Actual over budgeted total licenses, permits, and fees by $338,427.

Actual over budgeted intergovernmental revenue by $4,853.
Delay in capital projects of $2,047,247.

PN PE

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital assets — The Town’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30,
2020 amounted to 538,035,622 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment includes land, buildings,
improvements, machinery, equipment, and infrastructure.



TOWN OF THOMPSON'S STATION, TENNESSEE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED (UNAUDITED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Additional information on the Town’s capital assets can be found in Note 5 to the financial statements. The following table
compares capital assets on June 30, 2020 and 2019:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Land S 6,360,889 S 6,360,889 $ 2,992,000 $ 2,992,000 $ 9,352,889 $ 9,352,889
Construction in progress 774,990 237,920 2,457,616 228,377 3,232,606 466,297
Infrastructure 12,863,531 12,832,326 - - 12,863,531 12,832,326
Buildings 642,070 642,070 880,550 880,550 1,522,620 1,522,620
Equipment 255,074 242,516 532,716 519,982 787,790 762,498
Vehicles 273,640 192,343 48,361 48,361 322,001 240,704
Wastewater system - 15,524,671 15,524,671 15,524,671 15,524,671
Total capital assets 21,170,194 20,508,064 22,435,914 20,193,941 43,606,108 40,702,005
Less: accumulated depreciation (1,576,919) (1,164,796) (3,993,567) (3,547,199) (5,570,486) (4,711,995)
Capital assets, net $ 19,593,275 $ 19,343,268 S 18,442,347 S 16,646,742 $ 38,035,622 $ 35,990,010

Long-term Debt — At the end of the fiscal year, the Town’s total debt was $2,075,274 and is set forth in detail in Note 8.
Payments made on debt obligations total $356,411.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

Despite continued improving economic conditions, a conservative approach was used in preparing the Town’s budget for
the 2020-2021 fiscal year.

1. Aswe learned more and more about COVID-19, we took a conservative approach in developing the budget
for revenue projections. Sales and gas taxes collected make up 43% of the revenues.
2. Town projects that will continue into the next few years that have been approved and moving forward
are:
a. Trailways through Preservation Park (grant was awarded by the State of Tennessee)
b. Critz Lane road improvement to cut down the hill for safety and improved traffic flow
3. The Town sewer system is under design for an upgrade to a MBR system (Membrane Bioreactor). Design
phase has been approved with construction expected to start in the summer of 2021.
4. Tennessee Dept. of Highways (TDOT) will provide a technical study of Highway 31 (Columbia Pike) for
widening from Franklin to Spring Hill in the Spring of 2021.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town’s finances for all those with an interest in the
Town'’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or request for additional financial
information should be addressed to the Town of Thompson’s Station, Office of the Mayor, PO Box 110, Thompson’s
Station, Tennessee 37179.



TOWN OF THOMPSON'S STATION, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2020
Governmental Business-Type Total Primary
Activities Activities Government
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents S 7,222,535 S 3,987,362 S 11,209,897
Taxes receivable - property tax 306,429 - 306,429
Accounts and other receivables 66,741 216,812 283,553
Internal balances 245,396 (245,396) -
Due from other governments 539,999 - 539,999
Prepaid expenses and other - 560 560
Capital assets:
Capital assets not being depreciated 7,135,879 5,449,616 12,585,495
Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 12,457,396 12,992,731 25,450,127
Total assets S 27,974,375 S 22,401,685 ) 50,376,060
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses S 247,141 S 208,692 S 455,833
Deposits from developers 59,000 - 59,000
Accrued compensation and compensated absences 71,131 - 71,131
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year 245,300 111,111 356,411
Due in more than one year 1,505,900 212,963 1,718,863
Total Liabilities 2,128,472 532,766 2,661,238
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Property taxes 304,951 - 304,951
Prepaid tap fees - 1,116,000 1,116,000
Total deferred inflows of resources 304,951 1,116,000 1,420,951
Net position:
Netinvestment in capital assets 17,842,075 18,118,273 35,960,348
Restricted for State Street Aid 428,255 - 428,255
Unrestricted 7,270,622 2,634,646 9,905,268
Total net position 25,540,952 20,752,919 46,293,871
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position S 27,974,375 S 22,401,685 S 50,376,060

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF THOMPSON'S STATION, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Functions/Programs

Governmental Activities:
General government
State Street Aid
Streets and roads
Parks and recreation
Interest on long-term debt
Total governmental activities

Business-Type Activities:
Wastewater

Total primary government

General Revenues:

Taxes:
Property taxes
Local option sales taxes
Building permits/impact fees
Beer and liquor tax
Business and privilege taxes
Franchise tax

Unrestricted intergovernmental revenues:
Paymentin lieu of taxes
State sales tax
Mixed drink and beer tax
Business tax

Unrestricted investment earnings

Other
Total general revenues

Change in net position
Net position - beginning
Net position - ending

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and

Changes in Net Position

Primary Government

Operating Grants

Capital Grants

Charges for and and Governmental Business-Type

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
$ 1,776,032 44,553 $ 164,926 S - $  (1,566,553) S - $  (1,566,553)
33,023 - 178,170 - 145,147 - 145,147
357,129 - - - (357,129) - (357,129)
15,876 2,677 - - (13,199) - (13,199)
55,912 - - - (55,912) - (55,912)
2,237,972 47,230 343,096 - (1,847,646) - (1,847,646)
1,062,758 1,271,652 - 743,400 - 952,294 952,294
S 3,300,730 1,318,882 S 343,096 S 743,400 (1,847,646) 952,294 (895,352)
317,333 - 317,333
1,165,962 - 1,165,962
1,390,057 - 1,390,057
130,196 - 130,196
59,980 - 59,980
30,549 - 30,549
58,127 - 58,127
431,601 - 431,601
8,366 - 8,366
111,759 - 111,759
29,823 19,807 49,630
3,733,753 19,807 3,753,560
1,886,107 972,101 2,858,208
23,654,845 19,780,818 43,435,663
S 25,540,952 S 20,752,919 S 46,293,871

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF THOMPSON'S STATION, TENNESSEE
BALANCE SHEET — GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2020
State Street Aid Total Governmental
General Fund Fund Funds
Assets:
Cash S 7,222,535 S - S 7,222,535
Taxes receivable - property tax 306,429 - 306,429
Due from other governments 510,550 29,449 539,999
Due from other funds 245,396 398,806 644,202
Other receivables 66,741 - 66,741
Total assets S 8,351,651 S 428,255 S 8,779,906
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenditures S 247,141 S - S 247,141
Deposits from developers 59,000 - 59,000
Due to other funds 398,806 - 398,806
Accrued compensation 71,131 - 71,131
Total liabilities 776,078 - 776,078
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 305,652 - 305,652
Unavailable revenue - grants 164,926 - 164,926
Total deferred inflows of resources 470,578 - 470,578
Fund Balances:
Restricted for State Street Aid - 428,255 428,255
Unassigned 7,104,995 - 7,104,995
Total fund balances 7,104,995 428,255 7,533,250
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and fund balances $ 8,351,651 S 428,255 S 8,779,906

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF THOMPSON'S STATION, TENNESSEE
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2020

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Total fund balances of governmental funds S 7,533,250

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources, and, therefore, are not reported in the funds, net of
accumulated depreciation of $1,576,919 19,593,275

Receivables not available to pay for current expenditures are not
current financial resources and therefore are not reported in the
governmental funds

165,627
Long-term liabilities, including capital outlay notes payable, are
not due and payable in the current period, and, therefore, are not
reported in the governmental funds:
General long-term debt (1,751,200)
Net position of governmental activities S 25,540,952

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF THOMPSON'S STATION, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES — GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Revenues:
Taxes
Licenses, permits and fees
Intergovernmental
Other
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
State Street Aid
Streets and roads
Parks and recreation
Capital outlay
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures

Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

State Street Aid

Total Governmental

General Fund Fund Funds
S 1,704,877 S - S 1,704,877
1,392,149 - 1,392,149
609,853 178,170 788,023
75,661 - 75,661
3,782,540 178,170 3,960,710
1,689,274 - 1,689,274
- 33,023 33,023
22,500 - 22,500
14,477 - 14,477
672,016 - 672,016
245,300 - 245,300
55,912 - 55,912
2,699,479 33,023 2,732,502
1,083,061 145,147 1,228,208
6,021,934 283,108 6,305,042
S 7,104,995 S 428,255 S 7,533,250

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF THOMPSON'S STATION, TENNESSEE

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds S 1,228,208
Amounts reported for the governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities, the cost of

those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. Specifically these

items are as follows:
Acquisition of capital assets 662,130
Depreciation expense (412,123)

Revenue in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are not reported as resources

in the governmental funds for:
Property taxes (2,334)
Grant revenue 164,926

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment
of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Specifically, these items are as follows:
Debt payments 245,300

Change in net position of governmental activities $ 1,886,107

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF THOMPSON'S STATION, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE — BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

REVENUES:

Taxes:
Property
Franchise

Wholesale beer and wholesale liquor

Local sales tax - Trustee
Adequate schools facilities tax
Total Taxes

Licenses, permits and fees:
Beer permits
Building permits
Review fees
Impact fees
Miscellaneous
Total licenses, permits and fees

Intergovernmental:
Payments in lieu of taxes
State of Tennessee - sales tax

State of Tennessee - mixed drink tax

State of Tennessee - business tax

Total intergovernmental revenue

Otherincome:
Interest
Parks and recreation
Grants
Other
Transfer from reserves
Total otherincome

Total revenues

Budgeted Amounts
Original Actual Variance with
Budget Final Budget Amounts Final Budgets
283,500 S 283,500 S 318,890 S 35,390
30,000 30,000 30,549 549
114,000 114,000 130,196 16,196
915,000 915,000 1,165,962 250,962
46,000 46,000 59,280 13,280
1,388,500 1,388,500 1,704,877 316,377
600 600 700 100
504,000 504,000 810,916 306,916
5,000 5,000 37,019 32,019
567,000 567,000 542,122 (24,878)
2,000 2,000 1,392 (608)
1,078,600 1,078,600 1,392,149 313,549
56,000 56,000 58,127 2,127
550,000 465,000 431,601 (33,399)
9,000 9,000 8,366 (634)
75,000 75,000 111,759 36,759
690,000 605,000 609,853 4,853
57,500 57,500 29,823 (27,677)
30,000 30,000 2,677 (27,323)
572,000 572,000 - (572,000)
9,900 9,900 43,161 33,261
1,981,104 1,044,828 - (1,044,828)
2,650,504 1,714,228 75,661 (1,638,567)
5,807,604 S 4,786,328 $ 3,782,540 S (1,003,788)

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF THOMPSON'S STATION, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE — BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Amounts  Final Budgets
EXPENDITURES:
General Government:
Salaries and wages S 630,955 S 613,416 $ 595,823 § 17,593
Payroll taxes 49,184 49,184 50,913 (1,729)
Publication of legal notices 3,000 3,000 5,495 (2,495)
General expenses 3,000 3,000 1,595 1,405
Utilities 19,500 19,500 16,181 3,319
Membership and subscriptions 5,000 5,000 3,596 1,404
Insurance - property 16,000 16,000 2,465 13,535
Insurance - workers compensation 12,000 12,000 14,744 (2,744)
Insurance - liability 7,500 7,500 16,008 (8,508)
Insurance - medical 101,400 101,400 104,419 (3,019)
Insurance - auto 5,000 5,000 2,694 2,306
Telecommunications 6,000 6,000 5,270 730
Repairs and maintenance - building 24,000 24,000 12,353 11,647
Animal control services 8,000 8,000 7,251 749
Trustee commission 4,000 4,000 - 4,000
Other expenses 8,000 8,000 125 7,875
Travel 5,000 5,000 1,026 3,974
Economic development 3,500 3,500 2,424 1,076
Continuing education 6,000 6,000 6,052 (52)
Office 50,000 85,000 100,449 (15,449)
Postage 1,500 1,500 640 860
Printing, forms and stationary 6,000 6,000 513 5,487
Professional fees - legal 150,000 210,000 239,919 (29,919)
Professional fees - auditor 14,500 14,500 13,500 1,000
Professional fees - consulting engineers 146,000 225,000 262,552 (37,552)
Professional fees - other 50,000 75,000 72,142 2,858
Vehicle fuel and oil 22,000 22,000 13,073 8,927
Vehicle repairs 20,000 10,000 5,764 4,236
Bank charges 600 600 - 600
Donations 25,000 25,000 - 25,000
Emergency services 100,000 100,000 100,000 -
Retirement 31,548 31,548 32,288 (740)
Total general government S 1,534,187 S 1,705648 S 1,689,274  §$ 16,374

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF THOMPSON'S STATION, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE — BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Budgeted Amounts

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Amounts

Variance with
Final Budgets

Capital Projects:
Capital projects

Streets and Roads:
Resurfacing

Parks:
Park improvements, repairs, and supplies

Debt Service
Payments on capital outlay note

Total expenditures

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE-BEGINNING OF YEAR
FUND BALANCE-END OF YEAR

$ 3,912,000 S 2,719,263 $ 672,016 S 2,047,247
40,000 40,000 22,500 17,500
20,150 20,150 14,477 5,673
301,267 301,267 301,212 55
5,807,604 4,786,328 2,699,479 2,086,849
S - S - 1,083,061 S 1,083,061
6,021,934
S 7,104,995

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF THOMPSON'S STATION, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE — BUDGET AND ACTUAL
STATE STREET AID FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Original Budget Final Budget  Actual Amounts Final Budgets

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental
State of Tennessee - gas tax 1989 S 15,000 S 15000 § 13,812 S (1,188)
State of Tennessee - gas tax $0.03 per gallon 28,000 28,000 25,593 (2,407)
State of Tennessee - gas and motor fuel tax 92,000 92,000 87,225 (4,775)
State of Tennessee - petroleum special 9,000 9,000 9,383 383
State of Tennessee - 2017 gas tax 34,000 34,000 42,157 8,157
Total intergovernmental revenue 178,000 178,000 178,170 170
Total revenues 178,000 178,000 178,170 170
EXPENDITURES:
State Street Aid:
Resurfacing 170,000 49,167 33,023 16,144
Total expenditures 170,000 49,167 33,023 16,144
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE S 8,000 S 128,833 145,147 S 16,314
FUND BALANCE-BEGINNING OF YEAR 283,108
FUND BALANCE-END OF YEAR S 428,255

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF THOMPSON'S STATION, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND — WASTEWATER FUND
JUNE 30, 2020

Assets:
Current assets:
Cash S
Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses and other

3,987,362
216,812
560

Total current assets

Capital assets:
Wastewater system, net of accumulated depreciation

4,204,734

18,442,347

Total assets S

22,647,081

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses S
Customer deposits
Due to general fund
Notes payable - current portion

184,692

24,000
245,396
111,111

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Prepaid tap fees
Notes payable, less current portion

565,199

1,116,000
212,963

Total noncurrent liabilities

1,328,963

Total liabilities

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

1,894,162

18,118,273
2,634,646

Total net position

W

Total liabilities and net position

20,752,919

22,647,081

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF THOMPSON'S STATION, TENNESSEE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND — WASTEWATER FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Revenues:
Charges to customers - wastewater S 1,230,406
Penalties 19,435
Other revenue 21,811
Total revenues 1,271,652

Operating Expenses:
Supply and Operations:

Salaries 223,961
Payroll taxes and benefits 15,456
Repairs and maintenance 45,032
Permits and licenses 4,947
Supplies 12,571
Testing 3,187
Utilities 92,111
Insurance 37,978
Professional and consulting fees 151,534
Other 20,041

Total supply and operations 606,818
Depreciation 446,368

Total operating expenses 1,053,186

Operatingincome 218,466

Non-Operating Income (Expense):

Interest expense (9,572)
Interest income 19,807
Total non-operating income 10,235

Tap fees 743,400
Change in net position 972,101
Net position - beginning of year 19,780,818
Net position - end of year S 20,752,919

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF THOMPSON'S STATION, TENNESSEE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUND — WASTEWATER FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Receipts from customers S 1,223,344

Internal activity - receipts from general fund (payments made to suppliers and

employees by general fund, net) 97,275
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,320,619

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:

Proceeds from tap fees 743,400
Purchases of capital assets (2,241,973)
Principal payments on notes (111,112)
Interest paid on notes (9,572)

Net cash used for capital and related financing activities (1,619,256)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Interest income from cash and cash equivalents 19,807
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (278,830)
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 4,266,192
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year S 3,987,362

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided By Operating Activities

Operating income S 218,466
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 446,368

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable (48,308)

Due to other funds 563,761

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 140,332

Net cash provided by operating activities S 1,320,619

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF THOMPSON'S STATION, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity

The Town of Thompson’s Station, Tennessee (the “Town”), located in Williamson County, Tennessee, was incorporated
August 15, 1990, under the provisions of Section 6-1-202, etc. seq., of the Tennessee Code Annotated. The Town operates
under a Board of Mayor and Aldermen form of government and is authorized to provide all services accorded to
municipalities in the State of Tennessee.

The financial statements of the Town have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America applicable to governmental units, as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (“GASB”). The following is a summary of the significant accounting policies of the Town of Thompson’s Station:

The Town’s accompanying financial statements present the governmental units relevant to the operations of the Town.
The financial statements presented herein do not include agencies which have been formed under applicable state laws

or separate and distinct units of government apart from the Town of Thompson’s Station, Tennessee.

Based on criteria in GASB pronouncements, there are no component units to be included within the Town’s financial
reporting entity as of June 30, 2020.

Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements, the statement of net position and the statement of activities, report
information on all the nonfiduciary activities of the Town. The statement of net position presents the Town’s assets,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Net position is reported in three
categories:

Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by
outstanding debt that is attributable to the acquisition, construction, and improvement of those assets. Debt
that was issued for capital purposes is not a part of the calculation of net investment in capital assets, until the
proceeds have been used to acquire capital assets.

Restricted net position results from restrictions placed on net position by external sources such as creditors,
grantors, and contributors, or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted net position consists of net position which do not meet the definition of the two proceeding
categories.

The statement of activities presents the amount of direct expenses of a given function that are offset by the related
program revenues. The direct expenses are those that are clearly related to a specific function. Program revenues include
charges to those who use, purchase, and/or directly benefit from the services and/or goods provided by a given function.
Taxes and other revenues not properly included in program revenues are reported as general revenues.
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TOWN OF THOMPSON'S STATION, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2020

The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reporting using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are reported when earned and expenses are recorded
at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in
which the Town gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property
taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal
year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Generally, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements. Exceptions
to this general rule are utility payments between the Town’s Wastewater Fund and the General Fund. Elimination of these
charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Town’s policy to use restricted resources
first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. On
this basis, the Town deems revenue to be available if the revenues are collectible within 60 days after the end of the close
of the fiscal year, and up to one year for certain grant revenues.

Property taxes, sales, taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current period are considered to be susceptible to
accrual. Some expenditures (debt service, long-term compensated absences, and claims and judgments expenditures) are
recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental
funds.

The Town presents the following governmental funds, which are considered to be major funds:

The General Fund is the Town’s primarily operating fund. It includes all financial resources of the general
government, except those required to be accounted for in other funds.

The Town uses the State Street Aid Fund to account for the receipt and usage of the Town’s share of state
gasoline taxes. State law requires that these gasoline taxes be used to maintain street.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and/or producing and delivering goods in connection with the
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues are charges to customers for services.
Operating expenses include the cost of services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues
and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

The Town presents the following proprietary enterprise fund, which is considered to be a major fund:

The Town’s Wastewater Fund is used to account for wastewater revenues, expenses, and related assets and
liabilities for services provided to customers of the system.
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TOWN OF THOMPSON'S STATION, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2020

Governmental Fund Balances

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 54, the governmental funds report fund balances in classifications that comprise
a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the Town is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for
which amounts in those funds can be spent. The categories of fund balance are as follows:

Nonspendable — the nonspendable fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because
they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted — fund balance is reported as restricted when constraints placed on the use of resources are either: (a)
externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations
of other governments; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed — Amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal
action, either ordinance or resolutions, of the Board of Mayor and Aldermen level of decision-making authority,
are reported as committed fund balance. Committed fund balance also incorporates contractual obligations to
the extent that existing resources in the fund have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those
contractual requirements.

Assigned — Amounts that are constrained by the Town’s intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither
restricted nor committed, are reported as assigned fund balance. The Board of Mayor and Aldermen have
authorized the Town Administrator to assign fund balance up to certain amounts.

Unassigned — Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund. This classification
represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted, committed,
or assigned to specific purposes within the General Fund. In other governmental funds, if expenditures incurred
for specific purposes have exceeded the amounts restricted, committed, or assigned to those purposes, those
amounts are reported as a negative unassigned fund balance.

The Town does not have any committed or assigned fund balances on June 30, 2020. The Town’s practice is to expend any
available restricted, committed, or assigned resources, in that order, prior to expending unassigned resources.

Budgetary Basis of Accounting

The Town adopts an annual budget for the General Fund and State Street Aid Fund. The Town’s budgetary process
accounts for transactions using the modified-accrual basis of accounting, which is consistent with the basis used in the
governmental fund statements, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost and include amounts in demand deposits, interest bearing accounts, and
short-term investments maturing within three months or less. Cash equivalents also include investments in the Local
Government Investment Pool (“LGIP”) due to the short-term nature of their maturity. The LGIP qualifies as a 2a7-like pool
and is reported at amortized cost using a Stable Net Asset Value which approximates fair value.
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TOWN OF THOMPSON'S STATION, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2020

Receivables

All trade and property taxes receivable are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. Based on prior experience and
estimates of current customer credit-worthiness, an allowance for uncollectible receivables has been provided in the
amount of $12,000 for the Wastewater Fund.

Real and personal property taxes are Board approved by October 1 for each fiscal year on values assessed as of the prior
January 1. The Town has an enforceable legal claim as of January 1 (the assessment date). Property taxes are due on
December 1 and are considered delinquent after February 28, at which time penalties and interest are assessed and
property is available for tax lien. All property taxes are billed and collected by the Williamson County Clerk and Master
prior to remittance to the Town.

Property taxes receivable are recognized as of the date the Town has an enforceable legal claim. Property taxes are
reflected as revenues in the fiscal period for which they are levied, which is the subsequent fiscal year for the current fiscal
year’s assessment, provided they are received and collected within the current period or within 60 days following the
fiscal year end (August 31). Since the receivable is recognized before the period of revenue recognition, the entire amount
of the receivable is reported as a deferred inflow of resources as of June 20. Delinquent taxes estimated to be collected
subsequent to August 31 are included in the balance sheet as property taxes receivable and a deferred inflow of resources
to reflect amounts that were not available as revenues on June 30, 2020. The property tax levy is without legal limit. The
rate, as permitted by Tennessee State Law and Town Charter, is set annually by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen and
collected by Williamson County Trustee prior to remittance to the Town.

Receivables due from other governments are primarily from the State of Tennessee and Williamson County, Tennessee.
No allowance for uncollectible amounts has been recognized.

Governmental funds report unavailable revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered to
be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer revenue recognition in connection
with resources that have been received, but not yet earned as “unearned revenue”. At the end of the current fiscal year,
unavailable revenue principally represents amounts relating to property taxes.

Inventories

Inventories of materials and supplies of all funds of the Town were deemed to be immaterial and were not inventories or
reflected in the records. Inventory items are recorded as expenditures when purchased.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, buildings, and equipment, are reported in the applicable governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. Wastewater capital assets are reported with business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund statement of net position. Capital assets are defined
by the Town as assets with an original and individual cost of $5,000 or more and have an estimated useful life of more
than one year. Purchased or constructed assets are recorded as cost; capital assets that are donated are recorded at heir
estimated acquisition value at the date of the donation. The Town elected not to capitalize retroactively its major general
infrastructure (roads, sidewalks, bridges, and similar assets). Such assets will be reported as net items that are acquired
and constructed in the future. Repairs and maintenance costs that do not significantly extend the useful life or increase
the value of the asset are not capitalized. Land and construction in progress are not depreciated.
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TOWN OF THOMPSON'S STATION, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2020

Capital Assets (Continued)

Depreciation is recorded based on the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the asset. The estimated
useful lives of the assets range from 5 to 40 years.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position may report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources.
This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that
applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expenses/expenditures) until then.
The Town has no items that qualify for reporting in this category on June 30, 2020.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position reports a separate action for deferred inflows or resources.
This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an increase to net position that
applies to a future period and is not recognized as an inflow of resource (revenue) until that time. These items are amounts
in the governmental funds that were measurable at year-end but were not available to finance expenditures for the
current year. This includes unavailable revenues from property taxes. Deferred inflows of resources reported in the
statement of net position arise from imposed nonexchange revenues (property taxes) which are assessed prior to the end
of the fiscal year but levied in the subsequent year. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources
in the period that the amounts become available. In the business-type activities and wastewater fund, deferred inflows or
resources includes prepaid tap fees. These fees reserve capacity for taps within proposed parcels in a future year.

Estimates
Estimates and assumptions are used in preparing financial statements. These estimates and assumptions affect the

reported amounts of assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources as the date of the financial statements and
reported revenue and expenses during the period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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TOWN OF THOMPSON'S STATION, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 2 — PROPERTY TAXES

The Town’s property tax is levied for the current year on October 1 each year on the assessed value as of the previous
January 1 for all real and personal property within the boundaries of the Town. Property taxes are secured by a statutory
lien as of the original assessment date of January 1 and are an enforceable legal claim. Taxes may be paid during the period
of October 1 through February 28 and become delinquent on March 1. Delinquent taxes have been filed with the
Williamson County Clerk and Master.

A schedule of tax rates, assessments, levies, and collections for the last ten fiscal years are as follows:

Collections

Year of Balance June and Balance June

Levy Tax Rate Assessment Levy 30, 2019 Taxes Levied  Adjustments 30, 2020
2011 0.103 85,407,960 87,941 9 - - 9
2012 0.103 89,657,972 92,314 14 - - 14
2013 0.103 106,886,489 110,070 30 - - 30
2014 0.103 128,934,758 132,781 36 - - 36

2015 0.103 134,375,527 138,407 22 - 22 -
2016 0.103 193,407,102 199,209 52 - 15 37
2017 0.103 229,201,976 236,078 201 - 173 28
2018 0.103 254,372,725 262,004 2,587 - 2,580 7
2019 0.103 278,889,515 287,256 287,256 - 285,939 1,317
2020 0.103 296,068,634 304,951 - 304,951 - 304,951

$ 290207 S 304951 § 288,729 S 306,429

NOTE 3 — CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash totaling $11,209,897. State statutes authorize the Town to invest funds in the
following: bonds, notes, or treasury bills of the United States or any of its agencies; certificates of deposits at Tennessee
state-chartered banks and savings and loan associations and federally chartered banks and savings and loan associations;
repurchase agreements utilizing obligations of the United States or its agencies as the underlying securities; and state
pooled investment funds. Statutes also require that securities underlying repurchase agreements must have a market
value at least equal to the amount of funds invested in the repurchase transaction.

On June 30, 2020, total demand deposits and certificates of deposit for the Town were insured and/or collateralized in
one of the following ways. Deposits and certificates of deposits are insured, up to applicable limits, through the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”). All deposits and certificates were held in financial institutions, which are members
of the Tennessee Bank Collateral Pool. The Tennessee Bank Collateral Pool (the pool) is a multiple financial institution
collateral pool in which member financial institutions holding public funds pledge collateral securities. In the event any
member financial institution fails, the entire collateral pool becomes available to satisfy the claims of the governmental
entities. The pool also has the ability to make additional assessments on a pro rata basis to the pool if the value of the
pool is not sufficient to cover a loss. The Town’s deposits in financial institutions were entirely insured or collateralized on
June 30, 2020.
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TOWN OF THOMPSON'S STATION, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 4 - WASTEWATER RATES AND CUSTOMERS

The active number of wastewater customers on June 30, 2020 was 1,791.

The following monthly service rates for residential and commercial customers were in effect on June 30, 2020:

Minimum bill $17.74

Wastewater rates $7.69 per thousand gallons for 0-8,000 gallons

$9.78 per thousand gallons for 8,001-20,000 gallons
$12.20 per thousand gallons for 20,001 gallons and greater

Residential accounts are limited to a maximum of $55.00 per month.
Non-residential accounts have no maximum limit.

NOTE 5 — CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2020, was as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Beginning Decreases and Ending
Balance Additions Transfers Balance
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land $ 636089 S - $ - $ 6,360,889
Construction in progress 237,920 537,070 - 774,990
Total capital assets not being depreciated 6,598,809 537,070 - 7,135,879
Capital assets being depreciated
Infrastructure 12,832,326 31,205 - 12,863,531
Building and improvements 642,070 - - 642,070
Furniture and equipment 242,516 12,558 - 255,074
Vehicles 192,343 81,297 - 273,640
Total capital assets being depreciated 13,909,255 125,060 - 14,034,315
Less: accumulated depreciation for
Infrastructure (632,571) (334,629) - (967,200)
Building and improvements (211,608) (16,052) - (227,660)
Furniture and equipment (156,582) (36,161) - (192,743)
Vehicles (164,035) (25,281) - (189,316)
Total accumulated depreciation (1,164,796) (412,123) - (1,576,919)
Capital assets being depreciated, net 12,744,459 (287,063) - 12,457,396
Governmental activities capital assets, net S 19,343,268 S 250,007 S - S 19,593,275
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TOWN OF THOMPSON'S STATION, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 5 — CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs on June 30, 2020, as follows:

General government S 76,095
Streets and roads 334,629
Parks 1,399

S 412,123

Construction in progress on June 30, 2020, is attributable to the following:

Town Hall design S 65,663
Critz Lane improvement 592,654
Preservation Park: Trailways 116,673

S 774,990

Included in construction in progress on June 30, 2020 are various projects, as described above. Estimated costs to
complete these projects were as follows on June 30, 2020:

Town Hall design S 1,200,000
Critz Lane improvement 1,118,521
Preservation Park: Trailways 3,112,080

S 5,430,601
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TOWN OF THOMPSON'S STATION, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 5 — CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Business-Type Activities - Wastewater:

Beginning Decreases and Ending
Balance Additions Transfers Balance
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land S 2,992,000 S - S - S 2,992,000
Construction in progress 228,377 2,229,239 - 2,457,616
Total capital assets not being depreciated 3,220,377 2,229,239 - 5,449,616
Capital assets being depreciated
Wastewater system 15,524,671 - - 15,524,671
Buildings 880,550 - - 880,550
Machinery and equipment 519,982 12,734 - 532,716
Vehicles 48,361 - - 48,361
Total capital assets being depreciated 16,973,564 12,734 - 16,986,298
Less: accumulated depreciation for
Wastewater system (2,917,976) (387,839) (34,635) (3,340,450)
Buildings (259,782) (22,673) - (282,455)
Machinery and equipment (336,898) (26,656) 34,635 (328,919)
Vehicles (32,543) (9,200) - (41,743)
Total accumulated depreciation (3,547,199) (446,368) - (3,993,567)
Capital assets being depreciated, net 13,426,365 (433,634) - 12,992,731
Governmental activities capital assets, net S 16,646,742 $ 1,795,605 S - S 18,442,347

Construction in progress on June 30, 2020, is attributable to the following:

Hill Drip Field S 2,200,904
Alexander Drip Field 60,624
Wastewater Treatment Plant Design 196,088

S 2,457,616

Included in construction in progress on June 30, 2020 are various projects, as described above. Estimated costs to
complete these projects were as follows on June 30, 2020:

Hill Drip Field S 900,956
Alexander Drip Field 7,200,000
Wastewater Treatment Plant Design 688,912

S 8,789,868
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NOTE 6 — RISK MANAGEMENT

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, damage to, destruction and/or theft of assets, errors and
omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. The Town maintains insurance coverage through the Public Entity
Partners Pool (“PEP”), formerly the TML Risk Management Pool, covering each of those risks of loss. The PEP Pool is a
cooperative risk sharing arrangement between local government agencies that works in many ways like a traditional
insurer. The Town pays a premium, receives coverage, and can make claims against the coverage. The Town meets the
PEP’s guidelines and complies with its rules and regulations, including loss control requirements as well as its underwriting
standards. Rates of the PEP Pool are actuarially projected to provide adequate funding to cover loss reserves and expenses,
as well as building contingency reserves. Management of the Town believes such coverage is sufficient to preclude any
significant uninsured losses to the Town. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past
three years. See also Note 12.

NOTE 7 — INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITY

Balances due from/to other funds on June 30, 2020, consist of the following:
- $398,806 due from the General Fund to the State Street Aid Fund for cash held by the General Fund.

- $245,396 due from the Wastewater Fund to the General Fund representing wastewater activities.

NOTE 8 — LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
The Town’s long-term liabilities consist of the following on June 30, 2020:

General Obligation Liabilities

$1,153,000 Land Purchase Capital Outlay Note, Series 2013, due in

annual installments through September 26, 2023, with interest

payable semi-annually at 2.85% per annum. The full faith and

credit of the Town is pledged as collateral. S 461,200

$1,550,000 Land Purchase General Obligation (G.0.) Capital Outlay
Note Series 2018, due in annual installments through April 1, 2030,
with Interest payable semi-annually at 2.90% per annum. The full
faith and credit of the Town is pledged as collateral. 1,290,000

Business-Type Activities Liabilities

$1,000,000 Wastewater Drip Field Project Capital Outlay Note,

Series 2014, due in monthly installments of principal and interest

at 2.45% through May 13, 2023. All revenue of the Wastewater

Fund in Pledged as collateral. 324,074
$ 2,075,274

32



TOWN OF THOMPSON'S STATION, TENNESSEE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 8 — LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

The changes in long-term liabilities during the year end June 30, 2020 were as follows:

Due Within
July1,2019  Additions Reductions June 30, 2020 One Year

Governmental Activities:

Capital Outlay Note - Series 2013 S 576500 S - § 115300 S 461,200 S 115,300
G.0. Capital Outlay Note - Series 2018 1,420,000 - 130,000 1,290,000 130,000
S 1,996,500 S - S 245,300 S 1,751,200 S 245,300

Business-Type Activities:
Capital Outlay Note - Series 2014 S 435185 S - $ 111,111 S 324,074 S 111,111

Future principal and interest activities of long-term obligations are as follows on June 30, 2020:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities
Capital Outlay, Series 2013 and 2018 Capital Outlay, Series 2014 Totals
Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total
2021 S 245300 S 48911 S 294211 S 114,111 S 6692 5117803 S 3/6411 S 55603 S 412,014
2022 245,300 41,855 287,155 111,111 3,970 115,081 356,411 45,825 402,236
2023 245,300 34,799 280,099 101,852 1,248 103,100 347,152 36,047 383,199
2024 245,300 27,743 273,043 - - - 245,300 27,743 273,043
2025 130,000 22,330 152,330 - - - 130,000 22,330 152,330
2026-2030 640,000 55,100 695,100 640,000 55,100 695,100

$175,200 5230738 $1981,938  $324074 511910 $335984 52075274 S 242648 S 2317922

NOTE 9 — PREPAID TAP FEES

In 2018, the Town purchased two parcels of land for $480,000 (Hill property) and $2,625,000 (Alexander property),
respectively. As part of the agreement the Town accepted $1,116,000 from the seller for system development and tap
fees for 310 taps related to the Hill property and one other development. The Town also financed $1,550,000 through a
Capital Obligation Capital Outlay Note (see Note 8) for the Alexander property, approved for parks, open spaces, and
general infrastructure purposes. The Town anticipates using the property for drip fields. The remaining $480,000 was paid
through cash from the Wastewater Fund.

The Alexander property and related General Obligation Capital Outlay Note are recorded in the governmental activities
due to the approved use of the property and related debt. The Hill property and related prepaid tap fees are recorded in
capital assets and deferred inflows of resources in the Wastewater Fund. The residential units and drip fields planned for
the property are not expected to start development until fiscal year 2021, at which time the Town will be able to recognize
the prepaid tap fees as revenue after the board approves the final development plans.
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NOTE 10 — DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

During fiscal year 2016, the Town began to offer its employees a deferred compensation defined contribution benefit plan
through the Town of Thompson’s Station 457 Retirement Readiness Plan (the “Plan”). The Plan is a prototype plan created
in accordance with Internal Revenue Code section 457. The Plan is available to all employees working more than 30 hours
per week and permits participants to defer a portion of their compensation until termination, retirement, disability, or
other qualifying events under the Plan document. The Plan’s investments are held by John Hancock. The Plan provides for
a discretionary Town matching contribution of up to 5% of eligible compensation. The Town’s match for fiscal year 2020
totaled $32,288. Effective July 1, 2016, the Plan was amended to provide cliff vesting for Town’s matching contributions.
Such contributions vest after 3-years of eligible employment. The amendment affects employees hired on and after July
1, 2016. Those hired before July 1, 2016 are immediately vested in the Town’s matching contributions. There were no
significant forfeitures during fiscal year 2020.

NOTE 11 - WASTEWATER TAP AGREEMENT/TAP GUARANTEES

During fiscal year 2006, the Town entered into an agreement with a developer under which the developer would build a
wastewater treatment facility and contribute it to the Town. The wastewater facility was completed and contributed to
the Town during 2007, and a capital contribution was recorded. Also, under the agreement, the Town agreed to provide
to the developer the rights to 2,921 taps (access fees) to the wastewater system. The value of the wastewater facility
approximates the number of taps given by the Town. The developer may utilize the taps at its discretion. The Town's
guarantee to provide the taps expires in May 2021. The Town has no obligation other than to allow access to its
wastewater system, which it has agreed to do whenever the developer determines. As of June 30, 2020, the developer
has remaining rights to 853 taps.

There are several other current and future developments underway whereby the Town has approved a total number of
tap rights in the amount of 1,264 to developers. As of June 30, 2020, such developers have remaining rights to 1,083 taps.
While there is no current shortage as of June 30, 2020 for wastewater capacity to service the existing capacity needs of
wastewater customers, the Town is currently and actively taking wastewater plant improvement steps (addition of several
drip fields and is in the early stages of design project development for a future wastewater lagoon plant) so that the Town
can meet all capacity requirements from the guaranteed tap rights in the long-term. The Town does not expect for there
to be capacity deficiencies in the near-term that would cause a breach of contract on the guaranteed tap rights.

NOTE 12 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Town, from time to time, is involved in various lawsuits arising in the ordinary course of its business. The Town
maintains insurance coverage to minimize the risk of loss from threatened or pending litigation. It is management’s
opinion that any pending or threatened litigation will not have a material effect on the Town’s financial position or results
of operations.
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NOTE 13 — SUBSEQUENT EVENT (COVID-19)

On January 30, 2020, the World Health Organization (“WHQO"”) announced a global health emergency because of a new
strain of coronavirus originating in Wuhan, China (the “COVID-19 outbreak”) and the risks to the international community
as the virus began to spread globally beyond its point of origin. In March 2020, the WHO classified the COVID-19 outbreak
as a pandemic, based on the rapid increase in exposure globally at that time.

The full impact of the COVID-19 outbreak continues to evolve as of the date of this report. As such, it is uncertain as to
the full magnitude that the pandemic will have on the Town’s financial condition, liquidity, and operations. The Town’s
operations are heavily dependent on the ability to raise taxes, assess fees, and access the capital markets. Additionally,
access to grants and contracts from federal, state, and local governments may decrease or may not be available depending
on appropriations. The outbreak may have a material adverse impact on economic and market conditions, triggering a
period of global economic slowdown. This situation may depress the tax bases and other areas in which the Town received
revenue during fiscal year 2020. As such, this may hinder the Town’s ability to meet the needs of its constituents. As such,
the Town’s financial condition may be negatively impacted for the fiscal year 2021.
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TOWN OF THOMPSON'S STATION, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Grant Number/ Grant Grant
Federal Pass-through Receivables Receivables
CFDA Entity Identifying ~ (Deferred) Federal (Deferred)
Grantor Number Number July,2019  Receipts  Expenditures  June 30,2020

No expenditures of federal awards for the year ended June 30, 2020

TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompany schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes the federal grant activity of the Town under programs of the federal
government for the year ended June 30, 2020. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Costs Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because
the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Town, it is not intended and does not present the financial position, changes in net
assets, or cash flows of the Town.

NOTE 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1 — Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

2 — Pass-through entity contract numbers are presented where available.
3 —There were no federal awards passes through to sub-recipients.
4 —The Town has elected to use the 10-percent de minimus indirect cost rate, when applicable.

5 — Non-monetary assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair market value of the commodities received and disbursed, as applicable.

See independent auditors’ report.
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TOWN OF THOMPSON'S STATION, TENNESSEE

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT BY INDIVIDUAL ISSUE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Original Last Issued Paid and/or Refunded
Amount Interest Date of Maturity ~ Outstanding During Matured During Outstanding
Description of Indebtedness of Issue Rate Issue Date 07/01/2019 Period During Period Period 06/30/2020
Governmental Activities:
Payable through General Fund
Capital Outlay, Series 2013 $ 1,153,000 2.85% 9/26/2014  9/26/2023 $ 576,500 S S 115,300 $ $ 461,200
Capital Outlay, Series 2018 1,550,000 2.90% 4/1/2030  4/1/2030 1,420,000 130,000 1,290,000
Total $ 1,996,500 S $ 245300 $ $ 1,751,200
Business-type Activities:
Payable through Wastewater Fund
Capital Outlay, Series 2014 $ 1,000,000 2.45% 6/13/2014 5/13/2023 & 435185 § $ 111 S S 324,074
Total § 435,185 S S 111,111 $ S 324,074

See independent auditors’ report.
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certified public accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINACIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Mayor and Aldermen
Town of Thompson’s Station, Tennessee
Thompson’s Station, Tennessee

We have audited in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major
fund of the Town of Thompson’s Station, Tennessee (the “Town”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements and have
issued our report thereon dated December 22, 2020.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Town’s internal control over financial
reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose
of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Town’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town's
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees,
in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely
basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected
and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town’s financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit,
and accordingly, we do not express such as opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results
of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal control or on compliance. This
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Town’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Culver, PLLC

Culver, PLLC
Oakland, TN
December 22, 2020
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TOWN OF THOMPSON'S STATION, TENNESSEE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

SECTION 1 - SUMMARY OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ RESULTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Type of auditors reported issued on whether financial statements audited
were prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered to be
material weakness(es)

FEDERAL AWARDS

No separate audit on compliance required for the year ended June 30, 2020.

SECTION 2 — FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

None reported.

SECTION 11l — FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS

None reported.

SECTION IV — STATE AUDIT MANUAL FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

None reported.
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TOWN OF THOMPSON'S STATION, TENNESSEE
SUMMARY OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
JUNE 30, 2020

A. PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS — FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT
None reported.

B. PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS — MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT
Not applicable.
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Congenital Heart Defect Awareness Week

Dear Honorable Mayor Napier,

| am writing to you as parent of a child born with a congenital heart defect. Alfie was born with Hypoplastic
Left Heart Syndrome and required a life-saving heart transplant 16 days after birth.

Thousands of patients and families around the nation who are affected by congenital heart defects, the
number one birth defect in the United States (affecting 1 in every 100 births), are joining together to ask that
February 7-14th be proclaimed Congenital Heart Defect Awareness Week.

As a resident of Thompson’s Station and a member of Conquering CHD Tennessee, our mission is to Conquer
Congenital Heart Disease! We are accomplishing this through collaboration with patients, families, providers,
and partner organizations, to improve quality and outcomes through education, support, research and
awareness. | am requesting that you make an executive proclamation (sample enclosed) declaring the week of
February 7-14th to be “Congenital Heart Defect Awareness Week” in Thompson’s Station.

| hope you agree, this would be a perfect opportunity for Thompson’s Station to show its support to the CHD
Awareness effort. By making February 7-14th a special week to recognize the 2+ million Americans living with
congenital heart defects, to remember loved ones who lost their battle to CHD, and to honor the dedicated
health professionals who work with our families, Thompson’s Station is showing its commitment to the well-
being of our community’s heart patients and their families.

If you could send the proclamation as soon as possible, then we can further our plans for promotion of the
proclamation and celebration during the month of February. Our town’s participation in this event will have a
profound impact on thousands of patients and families. | thank you for your time and consideration.
Respectfully,

Bonnie Bruner

2017 Firtree Way, Thompson’s Station, TN 37179

615-294-5134
bonniebruner@gmail.com
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PROCLAMATION

CONGENITAL HEART DEFECT AWARENESS WEEK FEBRUARY 7-14, 2021

WHEREAS, the health and well-being of congenital heart patients is of paramount importance; and

WHEREAS, each year in the United States, more than 40,000 babies are born with a congenital heart defect;
and

WHEREAS, the medical community has identified congenital heart defects as the leading cause of birth defect-
related deaths; and

WHEREAS, medical research can provide more identifiable means of the origins and symptoms of congenital
heart defects; and

WHEREAS, there is no cure for congenital heart defects, and it is a lifelong disease requiring ongoing
specialized care; and

WHEREAS, fewer than 10% of adults with congenital heart disease are receiving recommended care; and

WHEREAS, it is crucial that individuals planning a family, fetal clinicians, obstetric physicians, pediatricians, and
all those in the medical field have a greater understanding of the potential for congenital heart defects; and

WHEREAS, Congenital Heart Defect Awareness Week provides the opportunity for patients and families
affected by this condition to share their experiences and knowledge, so that the general public may be aware
of how this defect affects our lives.

THEREFORE, I, Mayor Corey Napier, do hereby proclaim February 7-14, 2021, CONGENITAL HEART DEFECT
AWARENESS WEEK and encourage all to join me in this special observance.



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-011

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF THOMPSON’S STATION, TENNESSEE TO
AMEND TITLE 18 TO ADOPT A POLICY FOR WASTEWATER TAP REVERSION AND
ASSIGNMENT

WHEREAS, the Utility Board and Town Staff for the Town of Thompson’s Station is
recommending to amend provisions under Title 18 of the Municipal Code for the Town of Thompson’s
Station by adopting certain policy and procedures for the purpose of the reversion of wastewater taps
to the Town and assignment to requesting developers; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Mayor and Aldermen, based on recommendations and
considerations, has determined that the reversion of wastewater taps to the Town may be permitted and
desire to have a policy for that purpose, and

WHEREAS, the Board of Mayor and Alderman understand there does not presently exist a
policy for the reversion of wastewater taps between developers and the Town, and there exists a need
for such policy as there exist developers who currently have assigned taps for which they may not use;

WHEREAS, the Board of Mayor and Alderman has determined adopting a wastewater tap
reversion policy and procedure in order to ensure the public health and promote effective growth and
proper development for assignment for those developers in need of wastewater taps is in the best
interest of the Town, and

WHEREAS, the Board of Mayor and Alderman by adopting and implementing the
aforementioned policy and procedures for wastewater tap reversion to the Town and assignment by the
Town of wastewater taps would amend and modify by adding Chapter 4 as provided hereinafter to
Title 18, and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the Town
of Thompson’s Station, Tennessee, as follows:

Section 1. That the Town of Thompson’s Station’s adopts as the policy and procedures
for the reversion and assignment of wastewater taps to and by the Town by adding to Title 18, Chapter
4 as follows:

18-401 INTRODUCTION

(1) The Town of Thompson's Station in connection with efforts to improve the
process for the management and oversight of the infrastructure of the Town,
namely the wastewater taps allocated to existing Developers and the need of
future and requesting Developers, and in conjunction with the newly created
Capacity Reservation Ordinance (CRO), the Town of Thompson’s Station does
create, authorize and appove this wastewatertap reversion and assignment policy
as provided hereinafter as follows:



18-402 CREATION OF DATABASE

(1) The Town shall create a database that shall be maintained by the Office of Planning
and Zoning for the Town, for the purpose of tracking and maintaining the inventory
of wastewater taps that are currently assigned to existing Developers, along with
a database of those requesting Developers in need of tap allocation.

18-403 NOTIFICATION BY DEVELOPER OF UNUSED TAPS AND REPAYMENT

(1) Those Developers, who hold existing wastewater tap commitments and will not
be utilizing all of the assigned taps in their development, shall notify the Town of
their desire to make those taps available for other developments and for
reversion to the Town. Should such assigned, unused taps be determined to be
available for reversion to the Town, the Town shall repay to that Developer at the
then current wastewater impact tap fee rate for those wastewater taps submitted
for reversion to the Town. Thereafter, the Town will, through the below
referenced capacity review process, determine the use of those reverted
wastewater taps and facilitate a possible assignment of those taps.

18-404 RESERVATION APPLICATION

(1) Those developers in need of capacity for wastewater taps (requesting
developer) shall submit to the Town, pursuant to the Capacity Reservation
Ordinance (CRO), a capacity reservation application, along with the applicable

fees.
18-405 CAPACITY REVIEW

(1) The Town shall process the application pursuant to the Capacity Reservation
Ordinance, to include the capacity review by the engineer, along with all
considerations of the Land Development Ordinance or other applicable
considerations, such as the availability of capacity and the compatibility of
available taps based on the reversion of taps to the Town.

18-406 NOTIFICATION AS TO CAPACITY

(1) If the Town is able to certify that capacity is available for the project, the applicant
will be notified or if the determination is that such capacity does not exist, then



such notification will be provided to the applicant or the requesting developer may
be issued a conditional approval.

18-407 NOTIFICATION OF ASSIGNMENT OF TAPS

(1) If the Town, based on a review of the abovementioned database and
considerations, as contained herein, determines there exists available unused
wastewater taps from taps that have reverted to the Town or otherwise, the
requesting developer shall be notified and those taps, at the discretion of the Town,
will be utilized to satisfy the request of the applicant of the taps to the requesting
developer.

18-408 PAYMENT FOR TAP FEES

(1) The requesting developer shall have (30) days from the date the Town provides
written notification of the available taps to make payment to the Town in the
amount of the current existing tap fee rate. Should the requesting developer fail
to make such payment within the allotted (30) days, the availability of the taps for
assignment will be considered lapsed as to that requesting developer, and those
taps identified for assignment shall be made available for consideration for other
prospective requesting developers.

18-409 MISCELLANEOUS

(1) All reversion and assignment of wastewater taps shall be subject to approval by
the Town Staff for which the Town shall maintain records by and through the
above referenced database of such reversion and assignment of taps.

(2) This policy and procedure for the reversion and assignment of wastewater taps is not
intended to and shall not impact any current, existing developer agreements between the
Town and a Developer.

Section 2. If any section or part of the Ordinance, including any amendments thereto, is
determined to be invalid for any reason, such section or part shall be deemed to be a separate and
independent provision. All other sections or parts shall remain in full force and effect. If any section
or part of the Ordinance is invalid in one or more of its applications, that section or part shall remain
in effect for all other valid applications.

Section 3. This ordinance shall take effect immediately after final reading by the Board of Mayor
and Aldermen, the public welfare requiring it.



Duly approved and adopted by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the Town of Thompson’s
Station, Tennessee, on the day of , 2020.

Corey Napier, Mayor
ATTEST:

Regina Fowler, Town Recorder

Passed First Reading:

Passed Second Reading:

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

Town Attorney



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-011

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF THOMPSON’S STATION, TENNESSEE TO
AMEND TITLE 18 TO ADOPT A POLICY FOR WASTEWATER TAP REVERSION AND
ASSIGNMENT

WHEREAS, the Utility Board and Town Staff for the Town of Thompson’s Station is
recommending to amend provisions under Title 18 of the Municipal Code for the Town of Thompson’s
Station by adopting certain policy and procedures for the purpose of the reversion of wastewater taps
to the Town and assignment to requesting developers; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Mayor and Aldermen, based on recommendations and
considerations, has determined that the reversion of wastewater taps to the Town may be permitted and
desire to have a policy for that purpose, and

WHEREAS, the Board of Mayor and Alderman understand there does not presently exist a
policy for the reversion of wastewater taps between developers and the Town, and there exists a need
for such policy as there exist developers who currently have assigned taps for which they may not use;

WHEREAS, the Board of Mayor and Alderman has determined adopting a wastewater tap
reversion policy and procedure in order to ensure the public health and promote effective growth and
proper development for assignment for those developers in need of wastewater taps is in the best
interest of the Town, and

WHEREAS, the Board of Mayor and Alderman by adopting and implementing the
aforementioned policy and procedures for wastewater tap reversion to the Town and assignment by the
Town of wastewater taps would amend and modify by adding Chapter 4 as provided hereinafter to
Title 18, and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the Town
of Thompson’s Station, Tennessee, as follows:

Section 1. That the Town of Thompson’s Station’s adopts as the policy and procedures
for the reversion and assignment of wastewater taps to and by the Town by adding to Title 18, Chapter
4 as follows:

18-401 INTRODUCTION

(1) The Town of Thompson’'s Station in connection with efforts to improve the
process for the management and oversight of the infrastructure of the Town,
namely the wastewater taps allocated to existing Developers and the need of
future and requesting Developers, and in conjunction with the newly created
Capacity Reservation Ordinance (CRO), the Town of Thompson'’s Station does
create, authorize and appove this wastewatertap reversion and assignment policy
as provided hereinafter as follows:



18-402 CREATION OF DATABASE

(1) The Town shall create a database that shall be maintained by the Office of Planning
and Zoning for the Town, for the purpose of tracking and maintaining the inventory
of wastewater taps that are currently assigned to existing Developers, along with
a database of those requesting Developers in need of tap allocation.

18-403 NOTIFICATION BY DEVELOPER OF UNUSED TAPS AND REPAYMENT

(1) Those Developers, who hold existing wastewater tap commitments and will not
be utilizing all of the assigned taps in their development, shall notify the Town of
their desire to make those taps available for other developments and for
reversion to the Town. Should such assigned, unused taps be determined to be
available for reversion to the Town, the Town shall repay to that Developer at the
then current wastewater impact tap fee rate the-amount-paid-by-the-Developerto
the Tewn-for those wastewater taps submitted for reversion to the
Town. Thereafter, the Town will, through the below referenced capacity review
process, determine the use of those reverted wastewater taps and facilitate a
possible assignment of those taps.

18-404 RESERVATION APPLICATION

(1) Those developers in need of capacity for wastewater taps (requesting
developer) shall submit to the Town, pursuant to the Capacity Reservation
Ordinance (CRO), a capacity reservation application, along with the applicable
fees.

18-405 CAPACITY REVIEW

(1) The Town shall process the application pursuant to the Capacity Reservation
Ordinance, to include the capacity review by the engineer, along with all
considerations of the Land Development Ordinance or other applicable
considerations, such as the availability of capacity and the compatibility of
available taps based on the reversion of taps to the Town.

18-406 NOTIFICATION AS TO CAPACITY

(1) If the Town is able to certify that capacity is available for the project, the applicant
will be notified or if the determination is that such capacity does not exist, then



such notification will be provided to the applicant or the requesting developer may
be issued a conditional approval.

18-407 NOTIFICATION OF ASSIGNMENT OF TAPS

(1) If the Town, based on a review of the abovementioned database and
considerations, as contained herein, determines there exists available unused
wastewater taps from taps that have reverted to the Town or otherwise, the
requesting developer shall be notified and those taps, at the discretion of the Town,
will be utilized to satisfy the request of the applicant of the taps to the requesting
developer.

18-408 PAYMENT FOR TAP FEES

(1) The requesting developer shall have (30) days from the date the Town provides
written notification of the available taps to make payment to the Town in the
amount of the current existing tap fee rate. Should the requesting developer fail
to make such payment within the allotted (30) days, the availability of the taps for
assignment will be considered lapsed as to that requesting developer, and those
taps identified for assignment shall be made available for consideration for other
prospective requesting developers.

18-409 MISCELLANEOUS

(1) All reversion and assignment of wastewater taps shall be subject to approval by
the Town Staff for which the Town shall maintain records by and through the
above referenced database of such reversion and assignment of taps.

(2) This policy and procedure for the reversion and assignment of wastewater taps is not
intended to and shall not impact any current, existing developer agreements between the
Town and a Developer.

Section 2. If any section or part of the Ordinance, including any amendments thereto, is
determined to be invalid for any reason, such section or part shall be deemed to be a separate and
independent provision. All other sections or parts shall remain in full force and effect. If any section
or part of the Ordinance is invalid in one or more of its applications, that section or part shall remain
in effect for all other valid applications.

Section 3. This ordinance shall take effect immediately after final reading by the Board of Mayor
and Aldermen, the public welfare requiring it.



Duly approved and adopted by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the Town of Thompson’s
Station, Tennessee, on the day of , 2020.

Corey Napier, Mayor
ATTEST:

Regina Fowler, Town Recorder

Passed First Reading:

Passed Second Reading:

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

Town Attorney



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-001
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF THOMPSON’S STATION, TENNESSEE
OF THE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF THE TRANSFER, ASSIGNMENT AND
ASSUMPTION RELATED TO SECTION 16 (B) OF THE TOLLGATE VILLAGE
DEVELOPMENT AS TO MBSC TN HOMEBUILDER, LLC, AND PHILLIPS
BUILDERS, LLC AND CONFIRMATION OF ENTITY OWNERSHIP AND
RESPONSIBILITY

WHEREAS, the Town of Thompson’s Station (the “Town”) became aware of the
transfer of Phase 16 (B) of the Tollgate Village Development by MBSC TN Homebuilder,
LLC, (the “Developer”), which property was the subject of the agreement as delineated in the
Subdivision Development Agreement entered on the 9t day of May, 2017, between the Town
of Thompson’s Station and MBSC, LLC (the “Developer”); and

WHEREAS, the transfer of Phase 16 (B) of the Tollgate Village Development is
between the MBSC TN Homebuilder, LLC to Phillips Builders, LLC;

WHEREAS, the Townis of the opinion that such transfer, assignment and assumption
by Phillips Builders, LLC needs to be acknowledged by all parties in writing pursuant to the
terms of the Subdivision Development Agreement and to ensure a continued commitment by
Phillips Builders, LLLC to the obligations as entered by MBSC TN Homebuilder, LLC for
Phase 16 (B) of the Tollgate Village Development with the Town pursuant to the Subdivision
Development Agreement dated May 9, 2017;

WHEREAS, the Board of Mayor and Aldermen has determined that it is in the best
interest of the Town to approve the Acknowledgement of Transfer, Assignment and
Assumption of Phase 16 (B) of the Tollgate Village Development from MBSC TN Homebuilder,
LLC by Phillips Builders, LLC and _Confirmation of Entity Ownership and Responsibility,
attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the
Town of Thompson’s Station as follows:

That Phase 16 (B) of the Tollgate Village Development being developed by MBSC TN
Hombuilder, LLC has been transferred, assigned and assumed by Phillips Builders, LLC, to
include all obligations and responsibilities under the Subdivision Development Agreement
and

That all parties, to include the owners, operators and/or members of Phillips Builders,
LLC, MBSC TN Homebuilder, LL.C and the Town approve the Acknowledgement of Transfer,
Assignment and Assumption of Phase 16 (B) of the Tollgate Village Development from MBSC

TN Homebuilder, LLC by Phillips Builders, LLC and Confirmation of Entity Ownership and

Responsibility attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A.

The Board of Mayor and Alderman do hereby approve, and the Mayor is authorized
to sign the appropriate documents on behalf of the Town.

RESOLVED AND ADOPTED this day of 2021.

Corey Napier, Mayor



ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Town Recorder Town Attorney



Acknowledgement of Transfer, Assicnment and Assumption of Phase 16 (B) of the Tollgate
Village Development from MBSC TN Homebuilder, LLC to Phillips Builders, LLC and
Confirmation of Entity Ownership and Responsibility for Phase 16 (B)

The undersigned parties, Phillips Builders, LLC, a Tennessee limited liability company,
MBSC TN Homebuilder, LLC, a Tennessee limited liability company and the Town of
Thompson's Station do hereinafter make and state as follows:

Whereas, MBSC TN Homebuilder, LLC, a Tennessee limited liability company, is the
developer of Phase 16, including Phase 16 (B), of the Tollgate Village Development as delineated
in the Subdivision Development Agreement (attached hereto as Exhibit 1) entered on the 9th day
of May, 2017 with the Town of Thompson's Station, Tennessee;

Whereas, Phase 16 (B) of the Tollgate Village Development, being developed by MBSC
TN Homebuilder, LLC, has been transferred, assigned and assumed by Phillips Builders, LLC, a
Tennessee limited liability company;

Whereas, Phillips Builders, LLC, a Tennessee limited liability company, does acknowledge
there are no wastewater taps assigned to Phase 16 (B) by the Town of Thompson’s Station and
that no wastewater taps are involved in the transfer, assignment and assumption of Phase 16 (B)
of the Tollgate Village Development from MBSC TN Homebuilder, LLC to Phillips Builders,
LLC.

Whereas, Phase 16 (B) of the Tollgate Village Development is now owned and to be
developed by Phillips Builders, LLC, a Tennessee liability company;

Whereas, MBSC TN Homebuilder, LLC is under a Subdivision Development Agreement
for the entire Phase 16 of Town of Thompson's Station dated May 9, 2017, attached hereto and
incorporated herein as Exhibit 1;

Whereas, Phillips Builders, LLC does acknowledge the transfer, assignment and
assumption of the obligations and responsibility of MBSC TN Homebuilder, LLC, in its place and
stead, as it relates to Phase 16 (B) of the Tollgate Village Development, namely the obligations
and responsibilities as to the Subdivision Development Agreement with the Town of Thompson's
Station dated May 9, 2017, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit 1, but only as to Phase
16 (B).

Whereas, the Town of Thompson's Station does acknowledge the transfer and assignment
by MBSC TN Homebuilder, LLC and the assumption by Phillips Builders, LLC of Phase 16 (B)
of the Tollgate Village Development;

Now, therefore, the undersigned do acknowledge and confirm the recitals as set forth
hereinafter as follows:

829308.1/020191335



That MBSC TN Homebuilder, LLC has transferred and assigned and Phillips Builders,
LLC has assumed all rights, obligations and responsibilities of Phase 16 (B) of the Tollgate Village
Development to the Town of Thompson's Station, Tennessee;

That Phillips Builders, LLC, does acknowledge the transfer, assignment and assumption of
Phase 16 (B) from MBSC TN Homebuilder, LLC to include, but not limited to, the obligations
and responsibilities to the Town of Thompson's Station as the obligations and responsibilities
relate to Phase 16 (B) only under the Subdivision Development Agreement with the Town of
Thompson's Station dated May 9, 2017, which is attached hereto as Exhibit 1. MBSC TN
Homebuilder, LLC shall continue to have the obligations and responsibilities of Developer under
the Subdivision Development Agreement for all property within Phase 16 of the Tollgate Village
development other than Phase 16 (B). Such other obligations and responsibilities are not assumed
by Phillips Builders, LLC.

That the Town of Thompson does acknowledge the transfer, assignment and assumption
of 16 (B) of the Tollgate Village Development by Phillips Builders, LLC from MBSC TN
Homebuilder, LLC.

That Phillips Builders, LLC, their heirs and assigns shall have the obligation of timely
notice to the Town of Thompson's Station at the time of any future transfer or assignment of
ownership of Phase 16 (B) of the Tollgate Village Development within the Town of Thompson's
Station.

This document entered on the day of ,2021.

829308.1/020191335



THE TOWN OF THOMPSON'S STATION

By:

Name: Corey Napier MAYOR

MBSC TN HOMEBUILDER, LLC

By:

Name: Brian Rowe

Authorized Officer

PHILLIPS BUILDERS, LLC

By:

Name: Jason Phillips
Authorized Agent/Officer

829308.1/020191335
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SUBDIVISION DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

This Agreement is entered into on this 9" day of May 2017, between the Town of Thompson’s Station,
Tennessee (the "Town"), and MBSC, LLC (the “Developer™).

WITNESSETH:.
WHEREAS, the Developer intends to develop phase 16 in the Tollgate Village with 105 single-family

lots, six open space lots and removal of eight (8) tvees; and

WHEREAS, the plat of said subdivision received approval for a preliminary plat for the creation of
Phase 16 of the Tollgate Village development from the Thompson’s Station Municipal Planning
Commission (the “Planning Commission”), pursuant to the laws of the State of Tennessee and the

Subdivision Regulations of the Town:

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual covenants of the parties hersin
contained, it is agreed and understood as follows:

SECTION 1. Construction of Subdivisions
The Developer shall construct all required improvements and complete its subdivision in accordance

with the Town’s Land Development Ordinance, the approved construction plans, and the final
subdivision plats approved by the Plauning Commission. Required improvements include all streets,
storm drainage systems, storm water detention and retention structures, water systems, fire hydiants,
sanitary sewer, street lights, all other utilities, curb and gutter, sidewalks, lot and subdivision corner
monuments, street name signs, traffic control signs and devices, fences, and any required off-site

improvements.

SECTION 2. Surety _
Prior to the recording of the final subdivision plat, the Developer shall post a surety in the amount

recommended by the Town Engincer and approved by the Planning Commission, this amount being
10% greater than the estimated amount necessaty to complete required improvements, including roads,
sidewalks, drainage, and other improvements specified by the plans and plats of the development
apptoved by the Town and the Planning Commission. The surety may be called for failure to comply
with the provisions of this Agreement in whole or in part according to the terms of the surety. The
surety will not be released until there has been full compliance with this Agreement and certification
by a licensed engineer that the development has been completed in full compliance with the approved

plat and construction plans.

SECTION 3. Interpretation, venue, attorney’s fees
This agreement shall bind the Developer upon execution and may not be revoked without permission

of the Town. This agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with Tennessee law and may only be
enforced in-the Circuit Court for Williamson County, Tennessee, and Tennessee appellate courts, In
the event this Agreement is breached by the Developer and litigation is commenced, the Developer
shall be responsible for the reasonable attorney’s fees and expenses incurred by the Town as a result

of the Developer’s breach.

SECTION 4. Transferability
Except for the sale of individual lots after recording the final plat, the Developer shall not transfer the

subdivision property without first giving notice to the Town as to the name, address, and telephone
number of the transferee. If it is the transferee's intention to develop this subdivision in accordance
with the Agreement, the Developer agrees to provide the Town an Assumption Agreement in which
the transferee agrees to perform the improvements required under this Agreement andito provide the
security necded to assure such performance. Said agreement will be subject to the approval of the Town




Attorney. The Developer shall remain liable under the terms of this Agreement unless an Assumption
Agreement is entered into between the new owners and the Town.

SECTION 5. Acceptance of Improvements
Formal acceptance of improvements shall follow the procedure established in the Subdivision

Regulations. Subsequent to acceptance by the Town, the Developer shall have no claim, direct or
implied, in the title or ownership of the improvements. The Town, upon final approval and acceptance,
will take full title to the improvements and will provide maintenance thereafier, except that the
Developer is responsible for construction failures and defects in the subdivision improvements for a
petiod of one (1) year after the date of final acceptance of the subdivision improvements. During this
periad, it shall remain the.responsibility of the Developer to cotrect and cure these defects and failures.

SECTION 6. Wairanty
The Developer warrants that all improvements to be accepted by the Town will be fiee from defects in

design, materials, or worlmanship for a period of one (1) year from the date of acceptance by the
Town. The Developer shall immediately repair, at its own costs, all defects of any type whatsoever
which occur within said one (1) year period. If repairs required herein are not timely completed, the
Town shall have the tight, at its option, to make said repaits at the expense of the Developer. In such
event, the Town may call the Developer’s surety to pay for said repairs, Additionally, the Developer
shall execute a maintenance surety as required by the Subdivision Regulations.

SECTION 7. Spectal Provisions
Per the approval of the Phase 16 final plat the following conditions apply:

1. Prior to the approval of construction plans, a development agreement shall be approved and

- exeouled belween the Town and the Developer ;
Priotr to the approval of construction plans, all sufeties for each phase/section in Tollgate

2
Village and for the installation of the traffic signal shall be posted and submitted to the Town
in accordance with the requirements with the Land Development Ordinance.

3. All recommendations for traffic mitigation shall be completed in accordance with the

phasing/timing set forth within the traffic study dated February 28, 2017,
4. Prior to the submittal of the final plat for phase 16, all sewer improvements must be completed

to the satisfaction of the Town.
The construction route adjacent to Tollgate Boulevard, noxth of Phase 14 shall be utilized by

all construction traffic.
All tree replacement shall be revised to include trees 18 inches or greater as specified by the

Land Development Ordinance subject to review and approval to the satisfaction of the Town.

IN WITNESS WHEREOFP thep}‘tie/s, have g&ecuted this Agreement for the purposes herein
expressed. / //{/,f _,../—""f,'. /
W= (/L/////

Developer

Mayor 7

APIMNEB\A/S T.O,FORM AND LEGALITY:

Towy Attored




ORDINANCE NO. 2021-001

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF THOMPSON’S STATION, TENNESSEE TO
AMEND TITLE 15, CHAPTERS 4 & 5 OF THE THOMPSON’S STATION’S
MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING PARKING

WHEREAS, the need to provide for the welfare and safety of the citizens of Thompson’s
Station upon the roadways within the Town is of upmost importance, and

WHEREAS, a comprehensive parking ordinance is needed, and the Town does not
currently have one, and

WHEREAS, the Board of Mayor and Aldermen have for their consideration the adoption
of an amendment to Title 15, Chapters 4 & 5 as proposed herein to create a consistent set of laws
regarding parking, and

WHEREAS, the Board of Mayor and Alderman have further determined that it is in the
best interest of the Town to add a chapter, specifically replacing Chapter 4 of Title 15, titled
“Parking” as well as move the existing, with additions, Chapter 4 (“Enforcement”) to the newly
created Chapter 5 of Title 15; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the
Town of Thompson’s Station, Tennessee, as follows:

Section 1. That the Town of Thompson’s Station’s hereby adopts the following
ordinance, as provided hereinafter, and a new Chapter 4 of Title 15 is inserted and added with
the language as provided hereinafter, and the former Chapter 4 of Title 15 is moved, in its
entirety, to the newly created Chapter 5 of Title 15.

Section 2. That Title 15, Chapter 4 is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the
following language:

CHAPTER 4
PARKING

15-401. Application of Chapter Provisions. The provisions of this chapter prohibiting
the standing or parking of a vehicle shall apply at all times, or at the times herein specified, or
as indicated on official signs or pavement markings except when it is necessary to stop a vehicle
to avoid conflict with other traffic, or in compliance with the directions of a police officer or
traffic-control device.

15-402. Obstructing Traffic Prohibited.

(1) It is unlawful to leave any vehicle standing in any public street when such vehicle
constitutes a hazard to public safety or an obstruction to the normal flow of traffic.



(2) Whenever any vehicle is standing or parked upon or beside a roadway, no person
shall open any door of such vehicle on that side of the vehicle nearest the flow of traffic
on such street, whenever the opening of such door shall constitute a hazard or
obstruction to vehicles moving on the street in a lawful manner.

15-403. Stopping, Standing, or Parking — Prohibited Locations.

(1) No person shall stop, stand or park a vehicle:
(@ Onasidewalk;

(b)  Upon any median, buffer strip, planting strip or landscape strip located
between a sidewalk and roadway;

(c) Within an intersection or within 25 [feet] thereof, except to this shall have
no application to:

(1) Intersections at which the flow of traffic is controlled by either a
traffic light (providing the customary red, yellow and green signals) or a
stop sign;

(i)  Designated parking spaces when properly signed and marked;
(d) On acrosswalk or between sidewalk pedestrian ramps;
(e) On any controlled-access highway;

()  Alongside or opposite any street excavation or obstruction when other
traffic would be obstructed.

() Upon any bridge or other elevated structure, underpass or within a street
tunnel.

(n)  On a path or crosswalk within any park.
(2) No person shall stop, stand, or park a vehicle:

(a) At any place where official signs or pavement markings prohibit stopping,
standing, or parking;

(b)  On the roadway side of any vehicle stopped or parked at the edge or curb of
a street;

(c) Within an alley except during the necessary and expeditious loading and
unloading of merchandise or freight, and no person shall stop, stand or park a
vehicle within an alley in such a position as to bock the normal flow of traffic.

(d) Without its right-hand wheels of the vehicle parallel to and within 18 inches
of the right-hand curb;

(e) Infront of a public or private driveway;
() Within 15 feet of a fire hydrant;
(g) Within 50 feet of a railroad crossing;

(n) Inany area designated as a fire lane pursuant to the terms of the Standard
Fire Prevention Code adopted and codified by the Town; or



(i)  Within 15 feet of a mailbox.

() Within a Clear Sight Triangle, as established in Section 3.9.12 of the Land
Development Ordinance.

15-404. Angle Parking.

On those streets which have been signed or marked by the city for angle parking, no
person shall park or stand a vehicle other than at the angle indicated by such signs or markings.
No person shall angle park any vehicle or vehicle with a trailer attached thereto that blocks the
normal flow of traffic.

15-405. Parking Within Bicycle Lanes Prohibited.

Motor vehicles shall not be parked, stopped or left standing in a bicycle lane except as
otherwise designated by official signage.

15-406. Occupancy of More Than One Space.

No. person shall park a vehicle in any designated parking space so that any part of such
vehicle occupies more than one such space or protrudes beyond the official markings on the
street or curb designating such space.

15-407. Disabled or Unlicensed Vehicles.

It shall be unlawful to leave any vehicle parked on any public way or place for more than
24 consecutive hours when such vehicle is not in running condition or does not have a current
state license plate. Any vehicles parked in violation of this section shall be towed and stored at
the expense of the owner.

15-408. Parking of Commercial Vehicles in Residential Zones Prohibited.

(1) No person shall park any motor vehicle licensed and/or primarily used for
commercial purposes, continuously for more than 15 days within a residential zoning
district, either on a public street, or upon any lot smaller than five acres in size; nor shall
any person allow any such motor vehicle to be parked on any such property belonging to
him or under his control in violation of this section.

(2) The parking of a commercial vehicle otherwise prohibited under subsection (1)
shall be permitted so long as the vehicle is located in the rear yard of the lot, as defined
in the Franklin Zoning Ordinance, and is effectively screened from any adjoining
roadway or adjoining property by a wall, enclosure, fence, greenery or shrubbery.

(3) No school buses or trailers attached or attachable to any commercial vehicle shall
be parked in any residential zone at any time.

(4) Excluded from this section entirely are emergency service vehicles and other
vehicles actively performing a service on the residential property, including moving vans
and vehicles needed for construction purposes.



15-409. Parking on Narrow Streets.

(1) The Town Administrator, or his or her designee, is hereby authorized to erect signs
indicating no parking upon any street when the width of the street or roadway does not
exceed 20 feet, or upon one side of a street when the width of the roadway does not
exceed 30 feet.

(2) Whenever official signs prohibiting parking are erected upon narrow streets as
authorized by this section, no person shall park a vehicle upon any such street in
violation of any such sign.

15-410. Stopping, Standing, or Parking at Hazardous or Congested Places.

(1) The Town Administrator, or his or her designee, is hereby authorized to determine
and designate by proper signs places not exceeding 150 feet in length in which the
stopping, standing, or parking of vehicles would create an especially hazardous
condition or would cause unusual delay to traffic.

(2) Whenever official signs are erected at hazardous or congested places as authorized
by this section, no person shall stop, stand, or park a vehicle in any such designated
place.

15-411. Presumption with Respect to lllegal Parking.

When any unoccupied vehicle is found parked in violation of any provision of this
chapter, there shall be a prima facie presumption that the registered owner of the vehicle is
responsible for such illegal parking.

15-412. Placement and Erection of Signs.

It shall be the responsibility of the Town Administrator, or his or her designee, to place
appropriate signs in appropriate locations in accordance with this Chapter.

Section 4. That there is created a new chapter under Title 15, Chapter 5 as follows:
CHAPTER 5

ENFORCEMENT

15-501. Violation and Penalty. Any violation of this title shall be punishable by a civil

penalty up to fifty dollars ($50.00) for each separate offense, in addition to any other penalty
provided herein.

15-502. lllegal Parking.

Whenever any motor vehicle without a driver is found parked or stopped in violation of
any of the restrictions imposed by this Code, the officer finding such vehicle shall take its
license number and may take any other information displayed on the vehicle which may



identify its user, and shall conspicuously affix to such vehicle a citation for the driver and/or
owner to answer for the violation during the hours and at a place specified in the citation.

Section 5. After final passage, Town Staff is directed to incorporate these changes
into an updated ordinance document and municipal code.

Section 6. If any section or part of the Ordinance, including any amendments thereto,
is determined to be invalid for any reason, such section or part shall be deemed to be a separate
and independent provision. All other sections or parts shall remain in full force and effect. If any
section or part of the Ordinance is invalid in one or more of its applications, that section or part
shall remain in effect for all other valid applications.

Section 7. This ordinance shall take effect upon the final reading and approval by the
Board of Mayor and Aldermen, the public welfare requiring it.

Duly approved and adopted by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the Town of
Thompson’s Station, Tennessee, on the day of , 2021.

Corey Napier, Mayor
ATTEST:

Regina Fowler, Town Recorder

Passed First Reading:

Passed Second Reading:

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

Town Attorney





